
Meeting of:  Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee
Date: Tuesday, 18th September, 2018
Time: 6.15 pm.
Venue: Training and Conference Suite, First Floor, 

Number One Riverside - Number One 
Riverside

This agenda gives notice of items to be considered in private as required by
Regulations 5 (4) and (5) of The Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements)
(Meetings and Access to Information) (England) Regulations 2012.

Item 
No.

AGENDA Page No

1.  APOLOGIES 

To receive any apologies for absence. 

2.  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

Members are required to declare any disclosable pecuniary, personal 
or personal and prejudicial interests they may have and the nature of 
those interests relating to items on this agenda and/or indicate if S106 
of the Local Government Finance Act 1992 applies to them.    

3.  URGENT ITEMS OF BUSINESS 

To determine whether there are any additional items of business 
which, by reason of special circumstances, the Chair decides should 
be considered at the meeting as a matter of urgency. 

4.  ITEMS FOR EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC AND PRESS 

To determine any items on the agenda, if any, where the public are to 
be excluded from the meeting. 

5.  MINUTES 3 - 10

To consider the minutes of the meeting of the Corporate Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee held 31st July 2018 and the actions list arising 
therefrom. 

6.  WORK PROGRAMME 11 - 15

To note the Committee’s Work Programme 2018/19 

7.  3RD & 4TH QUARTER CORPORATE COMPLAINTS 16 - 27

Public Document Pack



The Committee is asked to consider corporate complaints received in 
the 3rd and 4th quarters of 2017/18 

8.  CONTACT CENTRE PRESENTATION - AGYLISYS KPI UPDATE 

To receive a presentation in relation to the performance of the Contact 
Centre/Agylisys against its KPI’s. 

9.  CUSTOMER TRANSFORMATION PROGRAMME 

To receive a presentation in relation to the Customer Transformation 
Programme, including work around ‘My Account’  

10.  SCHOOLS FINAL OUTTURNS AND REPORTABLE SURPLUS 
2017/18 

28 - 33

To report on the overall position of balances that are held in schools 
budgets. 

11.  GREATER MANCHESTER COMBINED AUTHORITY SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE MEETINGS 

34 - 63

a. Economy, Business Growth and Skills Scrutiny Committee – 
13th July 2018

b. Housing, Planning and Environment Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee – 12th July 2018

c.  Corporate Issues and Reform Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee – 19th June 2018 

Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee Members
Councillor Sultan Ali Councillor David Bamford
Councillor Malcolm Boriss Councillor John Hartley
Councillor Michael Holly (chair) Councillor Peter Joinson
Councillor Amna Mir Councillor Kallum Nolan
Councillor Shaun O'Neill (vice chair) Councillor Linda Robinson
Councillor Angela Smith

For more information about this meeting, please contact:
Peter Thompson
Governance and Committees
Floor 2, Number One Riverside,
Smith Street, Rochdale, OL16 1XU

Telephone: 01706 924715
e-mail: peter.thompson@rochdale.gov.uk 

mailto:peter.thompson@rochdale.gov.uk




CORPORATE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

MINUTES OF MEETING
Tuesday, 31st July 2018

PRESENT:  Councillor Holly (in the Chair); Councillors Bamford, Boriss, 
Hartley, O’Neill and Angela Smith.

OFFICERS:  V. Bradshaw (Chief Finance Officer), J. Murphy (Deputy Chief 
Finance Officer), J. Rooney (Assistant Director – Information, Customers and 
Communities), P. Gregory (Economy Directorate) and P. Thompson 
(Resources Directorate)

APOLOGIES
13 Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Sultan Ali, 
Joinson, Mir, Nolan and Robinson. 

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
14 Councillor O’Neill declared a personal interest in minute C1/56/17 of 
the Greater Manchester Combined Authority’s Corporate Issues and Reform 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee, held 18th April 2018 (‘The Response to the 
Kerslake Report’), by virtue of the fact that he was in receipt of a Firefighters’ 
Pension from Greater Manchester Fire and Rescue Service.

URGENT ITEMS OF BUSINESS
15 There were no urgent items of business for the Committee to consider.

MINUTES
16 The Committee considered the minutes of the last meeting, held 19th 
June 2018 and the actions list, detailing issues that were outstanding.

Decision:
1. The minutes of the meeting of the Corporate Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee, held 19th June 2018, be approved as a correct record.
2. The actions list, appended to the minutes, be noted.

WORK PROGRAMME
17 Members considered an updated version of the Committee’s Work 
Programme for 2018/2019.  The Chair of the Committee noted the additional 
work load that the Committee was likely to deal with in the autumn of 2018 
and in this regard it was suggested that the Committee hold an additional 
meeting, in October 2018, to alleviate this. In addition the Committee was 
asked to consider moving the dates of their scheduled meetings in November 
2018, from Tuesday, 20th to Monday 19th November and in January 2019 from 
Tuesday, 22nd January to Monday 21st January.

Decision:
1. The Committee’s revised and updated Work programme for 2018/19 be 

noted.

Page 4

Agenda Item 5



2. An additional meeting of the Corporate Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee be held on Monday, 22nd October 2018, starting at 6.15pm.

3. The dates of the meetings of the Committee in November 2018 be 
moved to Monday, 19th November 2018 and the date of the meeting in 
January 2019, be moved to Monday, 21st January 2019.

Reason for the decision:
The report is presented for information purposes, outlining the Committee’s 
programme of reports during 2018/19.

GREATER MANCHESTER COMBINED AUTHORITY SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE MEETINGS
18 Decision:
That the Minutes of the following three meetings be noted;

a. Greater Manchester Combined Authority’s Economy, Business Growth 
and Skills Overview and Scrutiny Committee, held 8th June 2018;

b. Greater Manchester Combined Authority’s Housing, Planning and 
Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee, held 5th June 2018;

c. Greater Manchester Combined Authority’s Corporate Issues and 
Reform Overview and Scrutiny Committee, held 18th April 2018.

DELEGATED APPROVALS 2017/18
19 The Committee scrutinised a report of the Chief Finance Officer which 
provided details of approvals of spend under delegated powers in relation to 
Revenue and Capital Schemes funded by additional grants or income during 
2017/18.

Alternatives considered: 
The item was presented for information purposes, therefore no alternatives 
were considered and it was also noted that the Cabinet had considered this 
report at its meeting on 26th June 2018.

Decision: 
That the he approval of spending under delegated powers made by Services 
during 2017/18 be noted.

Reason for decision:
The Chief Finance Officer, under approved Financial Regulations, was 
required to report to the Council’s Cabinet, at least annually, on schemes that 
had been approved under delegated powers.

FINANCE UPDATE REPORT 2018/19
20 The Committee scrutinised a report of the Chief Finance Officer which 
provided details of the Council’s financial position as at the end of May 2018. 
The Committee was advised that the report had previously been considered 
by the Cabinet at its meeting on 26th June 2018, where the recommendations 
contained therein were approved. In considering the report, Members 
received a revised and updated ‘dashboard’, that had been prepared by the 
Chief Finance Officer and which provided the information in a simplified 
manner by the use of graphs, charts and tables.

Page 5



The Chair requested details of the large value of capital items brought forward 
from 2017/18 into 2018/19. This analysis was provided but the Chair observed 
that he was concerned at this high level of rescheduling and he requested that 
this be considered by appropriate officers within the Council. It was confirmed 
that this matter was being examined by the Council’s Leadership Team. The 
Chair requested that a further update on this matter be incorporated into a 
future financial update report to be submitted to the Committee.

Alternatives considered:
There were no alternatives considered as not reporting on the Council’s 
financial position would not enable sufficient monitoring and identification of 
variations against the plan.

Decision:
That the financial update be noted.

Reason for resolution:
Effective budget management was considered to be critical to ensuring that 
financial resources were spent in line with the budget and were targeted 
towards the Council’s priorities. Monitoring enables the early identification of 
variations against the plan and facilitates timely corrective action.

BUDGET 2019/20 TO 2021/22 GUIDELINES, TIMETABLE AND PUBLIC 
ENGAGEMENT
21 The Committee scrutinised a report of the Chief Finance Officer that 
had recommended to the Cabinet, at its meeting on 26th June 2018, approval 
of the budget guidelines, timetable and methods of public engagement to be 
used in preparing the detailed 2019/20 budget and provisional budgets for 
2020/21 and 2021/22.

Alternatives considered: 
The Council was legally obliged to set a balanced budget and the submitted 
report set out a planning process for the budget including details of the 
assumptions used in the preparation of the budget to ensure they were 
agreed, reasonable and consistently applied by all services. The Committee 
noted that the Council’s Cabinet, at its meeting on 26th June 2018, had 
approved the recommendations that were set out in paragraph 2 of the 
submitted report.

Decision: 
1. That the proposed budget timetable, as detailed at Appendix 1 of the 

submitted report, be noted.
2. That the revenue assumptions as detailed at paragraph 4.2 of the 

submitted and which the Cabinet had agreed be incorporated into the 
budget setting process, be noted.

3. That the revenue and capital budget principles referred to in paragraph 
4.4 of the submitted report, be noted.

Page 6



4. The proposed methods of public engagement outlined in paragraph 4.5 
of the submitted report, to be included as part of the 2019/20 budget 
setting process, be noted.

Reason for decision: 
Under the Budget and Policy Framework the Council’s Cabinet was required 
to approve the proposed guidelines, timetable and methods of public 
engagement for setting the 2019/20 Budget and Provisional Budgets for 
2020/21 and 2021/22 by September each year.

SAVINGS PROGRAMME 2019/20 TO 2020/21
22 The Committee scrutinised a report of the Chief Finance Officer which 
presented recommendations regarding Savings Proposals in order to meet 
the budget gap for 2019/20 and 2020/21.

In presenting the report, the Chief Finance Officer advised that subject to 
decisions made on the individual savings proposals that it was anticipated that 
there would be an ongoing budget gap of approximately £1,896,000 to be 
identified, after savings of £1,704,000 (ongoing) and £200,000 (one-off).

The Committee were informed that this report had been considered by the 
Council’s Cabinet at its meeting held on 24th July 2018.

Alternatives considered:
The Council was legally obliged to set a balanced revenue budget. The 
budget setting process was complex and was to be undertaken in a planned 
way. Whilst budgets were prepared in accordance with the approved 
guidelines a number of alternative options relating to savings proposals and 
budget pressures were considered as part of the overall budget setting 
process.

The Cabinet had given consideration to a number of options in putting forward 
the savings proposals contained in the report and the submitted report 
outlined alternative options. To do nothing was not considered to be an option 
as the Council was legally required to set a balanced budget.

Decision:
That the saving proposals contained in the report and the consultation 
timetable and process as detailed in the report be noted.

Reason for decision:
The Council was required to recommend a balanced Revenue Budget and 
Capital Programme 2019/20 to Budget Council and provisional budgets for 
2020/21 to 2021/22. The Council was required to set a balanced budget for 
2019/20 by the 11th March 2019.  To enable the achievement of this statutory 
requirement, savings proposals were considered to reduce the Council’s 
expenditure.

EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC
23 Decision:

Page 7



That the Press and Public be excluded from the meeting during consideration 
of the following item of business, in accordance with the provisions of Section 
100A (4) of the Local Government Act 1972, as amended.

 
Reason for Decision:
Should the press and public remain during debate on this item there may be a 
disclosure of information that is deemed to be exempt under Parts 1 and 4 of 
Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.

SAVINGS PROGRAMME 2019/20 TO 2020/21
24 The Committee scrutinised a report of the Chief Finance Officer which 
presented recommendations regarding Savings Proposals in order to meet 
the budget gap for 2019/20 and 2020/21.

In presenting the report, the Chief Finance Officer advised that subject to 
decisions made on the individual savings proposals that it was anticipated that 
there would be an ongoing budget gap of £1,896,000 to be identified, after 
savings of £1,704,000 (ongoing) and £200,000 (one-off).

Alternatives considered:
The Council was legally obliged to set a balanced revenue budget. The 
budget setting process was complex and must be undertaken in a planned 
way. Whilst budgets were prepared in accordance with the approved 
guidelines a number of alternative options relating to savings proposals and 
budget pressures were considered as part of the overall budget setting 
process.

The Committee were informed that this report had been considered by the 
Council’s Cabinet at its meeting held on 24th July 2018.

Decision:
1. The Committee notes the savings proposals that have been approved  

by the Cabinet, on 24th July 2018, for consultation;
2. That the Committee notes the savings proposals as follows:

Savings Proposal
NH-2019-20-013 (Neighbourhoods) The Committee expressed its 

opposition to this proposal, as 
presented and requested that the 
Cabinet reconsider.

NH-2019-20-020 (Neighbourhoods) The Committee recommends that 
option One, as detailed in the 
submitted report, be approved but the 
Committee noted that Members will 
have a further opportunity to examine 
the proposals at the conclusion of the 
public consultation exercise.

NH-2019-20-021 (Neighbourhoods) The Committee notes the withdrawal 
of this proposal

NH-2019-20-022 (Neighbourhoods) That the proposal be noted

Page 8



NH-2019-20-024 (Neighbourhoods) That the proposal be noted

Reason for decision:
The Council is required to set a balanced budget for 2019/20 by no later than 
11th March 2019 and the proposals contained in the submitted report formed 
part of the budget setting process.

PROPERTY INVESTMENTS
25 The Committee scrutinised a report of the Director of Economy that 
informed Members of the performance of the Council’s recent property 
investments. The report also indicated that at the current time the investments 
were achieving/exceeding the performance targets that had been established 
for this activity.

Since March 2017 the Council has been implementing a commercial property 
investment strategy, designed to achieve rental income and revenue savings 
from acquiring an investment portfolio, whilst contributing to the Council’s 
overall regeneration aims for the borough. A budget of £30,000,000 has been 
made available for these acquisitions. The objective of the strategy is to 
promote regeneration and secure a rental return on its investments. As part of 
the capital programme the Council has also approved a £40,000,000 Direct 
Development Fund, to generate income through direct development projects 
by the Council which are not captured within the criteria of the existing 
investment funds, allowing the Council to act as a developer maximising land 
potential and land value, with a focus on under-utilised brownfield sites 
throughout the Borough.

Alternatives considered: none the report was presented for information 
purposes.

Decision:
That the report be noted.

N.B. At the conclusion of this item the Committee received an informal briefing 
on specific operational details appertaining to the Property Growth Fund that 
were considered to be commercially sensitive.

Page 9



CORPORATE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
Actions List 

ISSUE/MEETING 
REQUESTED

ACTION RESPONSIBLE 
OFFICER(S)

TIMESCALE OUTCOME

Call Centre/Agilisys 
Performance of KPI’s

The Assistant Director 
(Information, Customers and 
Communities), to submit a report 
detailing performance against 
agreed KPIs.

Mark Jones September 2018 The Committee 
agreed to receive 
twice yearly updates 
on progress against 
the KPI’s (and if 
necessary to visit 
the Call Centre to 
view its operations 
in an operational 
setting)

Insurance Claims An annual report covering 
insurance claims will be presented 
to the Committee in the autumn of 
2018, to align with the insurance 
annual cycle (September – 
September)

Director of Resources Report to the 
Corporate O&S 
Committee in autumn 
2018

Scheduled for the  
meeting of the 
Committee to be 
held in November 
2018

Health Related 
Absences

RBC’s Head of Human Resources
1. To liaise with Tameside 

MBC regarding their 
excellent record regarding 
sickness absence 
management 

2. Any significant variances (in 
future reports) be 
accompanied by relevant 
narrative 

Director of Resources Report to the 
Corporate O&S 
Committee in January 
2019

Scheduled for the  
meeting of the 
Committee to be 
held on 21st January 
2019

P
age 10



Paperless Meetings To assess the feasibility of holding 
‘paperless’ meetings of the 
Corporate Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee

Committee Services and 
members of the 
Committee

Throughout the 
2018/19 Municipal 
Year 

Issues to be scheduled:
a. Organisational Strategy (for RBC as a whole) – Head of Human Resources
b. Health and Wellbeing Strategy (for RBC as a whole) – Head of Human Resources
c. ‘Support the Community Safety Partnership’ – report to a future meeting – Assistant Director (Information, Customers and 

Communities)
d. Council Connected Programme – presentation to September 2018 meeting - Assistant Director (Information, Customers and 

Communities)
e. Role of the Policy Advisor – meeting of Overview and Scrutiny Committee Chairs and Vice Chairs
f. Digital Strategy – report to a future meeting (autumn 2018) -  Assistant Director (Information, Customers and Communities)
g. Development of the Corporate Plan (autumn 2018) - Assistant Director (Information, Customers and Communities)
h. Study Group – Balfour Beattie/Highways Maintenance. First meeting to be held in September 2018

P
age 11



CORPORATE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 

WORK PROGRAMME 2018/19

Who are we?

The Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee is made up of 11 Members 
(reflecting the Council’s political balance) who manage the functions of the 
Committee (as detailed within the Constitution of the Council- also see the 
how we do it section below).  The meeting dates and report deadline dates 
are as follows:  

Name of Committee Final Reports Deadline
Agenda Publication 
Deadline

Date of meeting

Corporate Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee 
Wednesday, 6th June, 2018 Monday, 11th June, 2018 Tuesday, 19th June, 2018

Corporate Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee
Wednesday, 18th July, 2018 Monday, 23rd July, 2018 Tuesday, 31st July, 2018

Corporate Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee
Wednesday, 5th September, 2018

Monday, 10th September, 

2018

Tuesday, 18th September, 

2018

Corporate Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee
Wednesday, 10th October 2018 Friday, 12th October 2018

Monday, 22nd October 

2018

Corporate Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee
Wednesday, 7th November, 2018 Friday, 9th November, 2018

Monday, 19th November, 

2018

Corporate Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee
Wednesday, 9th January, 2019 Friday, 11th January, 2019

Monday, 21st January, 

2019

Budget Corporate Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee
Wednesday, 30th January, 2019 Friday, 1st February, 2019

Monday, 11th February, 

2019

What we do
The Committee’s primary role is to hold the executive to account by way of 
undertaking policy and budget development reviews as well as 
questioning/challenging the judgement and decisions making of the 
Executive, Members, Portfolio Holders and Senior Officers. The Committee’s 
work is also supported by the study groups it commissions and monitors. 

How we do it
The functions of the Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee are:

 Develop a work programme detailing the objectives, timetable and 
methodology.

 Responsible Committee for scrutiny of Townships generally; corporate 
service development and delivery; for scrutiny of partnerships or key 
contractors (e.g. Agilysis); corporate performance monitoring; 
corporate financial monitoring and the annual budget development 

Page 12

Agenda Item 6



consultation, and for overview of the respective Portfolio Holders and 
Directors.

 Respond to consultation by Cabinet on relevant policy development 
and the annual budget proposals.

 Scrutinise the in-year performance of Council Services and other 
appropriate bodies, in accordance with the Council’s Performance 
Management Framework and against approved Directorate Plans, 
where appropriate.

 Scrutinise in-year budget performance.
 Instigate the appropriate action in response to adverse service 

performance.
 Scrutinise inspection reports and associated action plans produced by 

external agencies (where appropriate to this Committee).
 Review and scrutinise executive decisions in accordance with the 

Council’s Constitution, which have been called-in by Members of the 
Council.

 Receive reports, where appropriate, from the Council’s representatives 
on outside bodies, and to direct representatives to report to the 
Council, where appropriate.

 Commission, scope and oversee studies and reviews relating to 
Council Services and issues directly affecting the Borough and, where 
appropriate, to make recommendations to the Cabinet arising from 
such studies and reviews.

 Consider annual Service Plans in line with Council Policy (Part 4E - 
Constitution of the Council).

Page 13



CORPORATE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE – MEETINGS IN 
2018/19

19th June 2018

31st July 2018

Work Programme To note the Committee’s Work 
Programme 

Call-in/Member items/other referrals
Delegated Approvals 2017/18 Financial scrutiny
Financial Update 2018/19 Financial scrutiny

Budget 2019/20 to 2021/22 
Guidelines, Timetable and Public 
Engagement

Financial scrutiny

Savings Proposals Financial scrutiny
Property Investments Performance monitoring and 

management
GMCA Scrutiny Committee minutes For information

18th September 2018

Work Programme To note the Committee’s Work 
Programme 

Call-in/Member items/other referrals  
 Presentation – Agilisys (presentation 

highlighting KPI’s)
Performance monitoring and 
management

Presentation -  Customer transformation 
Programme/’My Account’ 

Performance monitoring and 
management

Work Programme To consider the Committee’s Work 
Programme for 2018/19

Call-in/Member items/other referrals
Directorate Plan Updates (4th Quarter 
2017/18)
 Resources Directorate
 Neighbourhoods (Corporate 

Services) Directorate

Performance management and 
monitoring

Revenue Finance Outturn Report 
2017/18 

Financial scrutiny

Capital Finance Outturn Report 2017/18 Financial scrutiny
Savings outturn Report 2017/18 Financial scrutiny
Collection Fund Outturn Report 2017/18 Financial scrutiny
Delegated Approvals 2017/18 Financial scrutiny
GMCA Scrutiny Committee minutes For information

Page 14



Performance Monitoring: Corporate 
Complaints

Performance monitoring and 
management

Schools Final Outturns and Reportable 
Surplus 2017/18

Financial scrutiny

GMCA Scrutiny Committee Minutes For information

22nd October 2018 (additional meeting)

Work Programme 2016/17 To note the Committee’s Work 
Programme 

Call-in/Member items/other referrals  
Digital Strategy Presentation Presentation by Assistant Director 

(Information, Customers and 
Communities)

Update presentation on 
Communications Strategy

Presentation by Head of 
Communications)

Financial Update Report 2018/19 Financial scrutiny
Collection Fund 2018/19 Financial scrutiny
Discretionary Fees and Charges 
2019/20 (for consultation)

Financial scrutiny

Medium Term Financial Strategy 
2019/20 – 2023/24

Financial scrutiny

Revenue Budget Update 2018/19 – 
2021/22

Financial scrutiny

Savings programme 2019/20 – 
2020/21(Round One – post 
consultation)

Scrutiny of proposals

Local Government Ombudsman:  
Annual Review 2017/18

For information

GMCA Scrutiny Committee Minutes For information

19th November 2018

Work Programme 2016/17 To note the Committee’s Work 
Programme 

Call-in/Member items/other referrals  
Insurance Service – Annual Review Performance monitoring and 

management
 Directorate Plan Update: 1st and 2nd 

Quarter – 2018/19 (April – 
September)

 Resources Directorate
 Neighbourhoods (Corporate 

Services) Directorate

Performance monitoring and 
management

Emerging Corporate Plan Performance monitoring and 
management

Capital programme 2019/20 – 2021/22 Financial scrutiny
Council Tax and Business Rates Bases 
2019/20

Financial scrutiny

Savings Programme 2019/20 – 2020/21 Financial scrutiny

Page 15



(Round 2 – for consultation)

21st January 2019

Work Programme To note the Committee’s Work 
Programme

Call-in/Member items/other referrals  
Presentation – Agilisys (presentation 
highlighting KPI’s)
Performance Monitoring: 1st and 2nd 
Quarters 2018/19 (April – September)

 Corporate Complaints
 Health related absences

Performance monitoring and 
management

Organisation Development Strategy 
(Head of Human Resources)

Scrutiny of proposals

Directorate Plan Update reports: 3rd 
Quarter 2018/19 
 Resources Directorate
 Neighbourhoods (Corporate 

Services) Directorate

Performance monitoring and 
management

Savings Programme 2019/20 – 2020/21 
(Round 2 – post consultation)

Financial scrutiny

 Revenue Budget Update 2019/20 
– 2021/22

Financial scrutiny

GMCA Scrutiny Committee Minutes

11th February 2019 (Budget Scrutiny meeting)

Work Programme To note the Committee’s Work 
Programme 

Call-in/Member items/other referrals  
Treasury Management Strategy 2019/20 Budget Scrutiny
Medium Term Financial Strategy 
2019/20 – 2023/24

Budget Scrutiny

Corporate Debt Strategy Budget Scrutiny
Local Government Act 2003 (a statutory 
report on the robustness of the budget)

Budget Scrutiny

Revenue and Capital Budgets and 
Council Tax 2019/20  

Budget Scrutiny

Place Plan – Rochdale Borough Council Performance Management and 
monitoring

GMCA Scrutiny Committee Minutes

Page 16



Report to Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee

Date of Meeting 18th September 2018
Portfolio Cabinet Member for 

Neighbourhoods, 
Community & Culture

Report Author Carolyn Whitham
Public/Private Document Public

3rd & 4th Quarter Corporate Complaints

Executive Summary

1. The report provides Members with a summary of corporate complaints and 
compliments received during the third and fourth quarters of 2017/18.

Recommendation

2.
It is recommended that Members of the Committee consider and scrutinise the 
information contained in the report and assess whether further information or 
explanation is required regarding any of the issues raised in the report.

Reason for Recommendation

3. Part of the Council’s performance management process is to ensure the
Authority’s ambition to continuously improve services is realised, and actions 
or decisions may need to be taken to maintain improvement.

Key Points for Consideration

4. In total, 308 new complaints were received during the second half of 2017/18 
across all services.  The majority of the complaints were resolved at stage 
one, with only 13 escalating to stage two.  There were 3 complaints dealt with 
directly at stage two due to the nature of the complaint, and 2 complaints dealt 
with at stage one during a previous quarter were also considered at stage two 
during this reporting period.  There were 2 complaints dealt with at stage 
three.   A total of 168 compliments were received in this reporting period.

There was an increase in the number of complaints received during this 
reporting period compared to the same period last year, however, 45% of the 
complaints received were found to be not upheld.

Details of complaints dealt with by the Ombudsman are presented in a 
separate report which is produced following receipt of the Local Government & 
Social Care Ombudsman’s Annual Review in July.

Page 17

Agenda Item 7



4.1 Alternatives Considered

None.  Information has been compiled from the complaints recording system 
used by all services to record complaints and compliments.

Costs and Budget Summary

5. None of the complaints dealt with in this reporting period had financial 
implications.

Risk and Policy Implications

There are no specific risk issues for Members to consider arising from this 
report.

Complainants have the opportunity to refer their complaint to the Local 
Government & Social Care Ombudsman for up to twelve months from 
completion of the Council’s complaints process; therefore there is a risk that 
the outcome of a future Ombudsman investigation into a complaint may result 
in a recommended financial remedy.  Complaints considered by the 
Ombudsman are reported to Overview and Scrutiny Committee annually on 
receipt of the Ombudsman’s annual report.

6.

Consultation

7. Not applicable.

Background Papers Place of Inspection

8. None

For Further Information Contact: Carolyn Whitham, Tel: 01706 923508, 
carolyn.whitham@rochdale.gov.uk

Page 18



Appendix 1
CORPORATE COMPLAINTS 3RD & 4TH QUARTERS 2017/18

The Local Government & Social Care Ombudsman’s definition of a complaint is “an 
expression of dissatisfaction about a Council service (whether that service is provided 
directly by the council or by a contractor or partner) that requires a response”

The Council’s Corporate Complaints Policy consists of a three stage process, providing a 
point of appeal at stage three via the Customer Feedback Team for complainants who 
remain dissatisfied with the outcome of their complaint to a service.

New complaints received

A total of 308 new complaints were received in the second half of 2017-18. As can be seen 
from the graph below, the number of complaints received by the majority of services 
fluctuated slightly over the four quarters of the year.

There was an increase in the number of complaints recorded during the fourth quarter for 
the Environmental Management Service compared to the previous quarter; however, the 
number of complaints received in quarter 3 was particularly low.  The number of service 
requests received in quarter 4 also increased by almost 2000.

The number of complaints received against the Highways Service rose slightly each quarter 
throughout the year, as did the number of service requests; however 50% of the overall 
number of complaints received in this reporting period were found to be not upheld.

Details of the complaints received in the reporting period and examples of lessons learned 
as a result of complaints are included later in the report.

Page 19



Appendix 1
Year on year comparison

The graph below compares the total number of complaints received in the second half of 
2017-18 with the same period last year.  The number of complaints received in this 
reporting period increased compared to the previous year, however, 45% of the overall 
number of complaints received were found to be not upheld.

Complaints by Directorate

Details of the nature of complaints received by each Directorate can be found in the 
following tables.  The tables include details of all complaints that were either upheld or 
partially upheld together with the number of complaints that were found to be not upheld.  A 
number of complaints are reported as being ‘out of scope’.  These are complaints where it 
was established that the subject of the complaint was the responsibility of another 
organisation e.g. Rochdale Boroughwide Housing or Riverside Housing and the complaints 
were referred on to be dealt with under the organisation’s own complaints procedure.

AGILISYS

Service Area Nature of complaint  3rd Qtr 4th Qtr
Contact Centre Call handling 4 2

Call waiting times 2 1
Conflicting information given by Advisors 1 0
Not upheld 1 2

 Total 8 5

Page 20



Appendix 1
ECONOMY

NEIGHBOURHOODS

Service Area Nature of complaint  3rd Qtr 4th Qtr
Communications Information on Facebook page 0 1
 Total 0 1

Service Area Nature of complaint 3rd Qtr 4th Qtr
Environmental Management Missed / continual missed bins 12 15

Actions/attitude of operative 6 11
Bins not returned to collection point 3 10
New bin request 3 2
Replacement caddy liners not left 3 2
Street cleansing 2 2
Lack of response to service request 1 3
Security at Bowlee bonfire 1 0
Location of litter bin 1 0
Lack of weed spraying 1 0
Damage to vehicle from leaf blower 1 0
Fly tipping 1 1
Damage to grass from waste vehicle 0 3
Enforcement action 0 1
Dead animal removal 0 1
Damage to grave 0 1
Missed bulky waste collection 0 1
Notice left on resident’s bin 0 1
Not upheld 20 26
Out of scope of complaints policy 2 2
Total 57 82

Service Area Nature of complaint  3rd Qtr 4th Qtr
Planning Planning enforcement 1 0

Failure to enforce planning condition 1 0
Lack of response to calls/emails 0 2

 Not upheld 9 5
Out of scope of complaints procedure 0 1

 Total 11 8

Service Area Nature of complaint  3rd Qtr 4th Qtr
Customers & Communities Slow internet speed in libraries 2 0

Incorrect contact details provided 1 0
Lack of contact re reserved book 1 0
Lack of empathy from reception staff 1 0
Conduct of Librarian 0 1
Not upheld 0 1

 Total 5 2

Service Area Nature of complaint  3rd Qtr 4th Qtr
Facilities Management Quality of event at Town Hall 2 0
 Not upheld 1 0
 Total 3 0Page 21



Appendix 1

PUBLIC HEALTH AND WELLBEING

Service Area Nature of complaint  3rd Qtr 4th Qtr
Public Protection Delay  in providing refund 0 1

Not upheld 0 3
 Total 0 4

RESOURCES

Service Area Nature of complaint 3rd Qtr 4th Qtr
Revenues & Benefits Delay in responding to benefit enquiry 1 0

Inaccurate Council Tax bill 1 1
Response to query re Council Tax bill 1 0
Attitude of Council Tax officer 1 0
Lack of response to benefit enquiry 0 1
Invoice not received before Final Notice 0 1
Not upheld 14 9
Out of scope of complaints policy 2 0

 Total 20 12

Service Area Nature of complaint  3rd Qtr 4th Qtr
ICT Charge for calls to Adult Care service 1 0

Issue with online payment facility 0 1
 Total 1 1

Service Area Nature of complaint  3rd Qtr 4th Qtr
Highways & Property Lack of response to service request 4 7

Potholes / condition of roads 1 5
Lack of gritting / empty salt bins 1 0
Parking restrictions at Leisure Centre  2 1
Attitude of Parking Services officer 1 3
Delay in responding to PCN appeal 1 1
PCN charge increased during appeal 0 1

 Insecure traffic camera 1 0
 Need for ticket for 3hrs free parking 1 0

Delay in adoption of new road 1 0
Conduct of contractors 1 0
New paving hazardous in icy conditions 1 0
Damage from passing gritting vehicle 1 0
Temporary traffic controls 0 1
Installation of new cycle lane 0 1
Damaged pavement 0 1
Delay in installation of dropped kerb 0 1
Not upheld 19 25

 Total 35 47

Service Area Nature of complaint  3rd Qtr 4th Qtr
Strategic Housing Work carried out under grant scheme 1 0

Not upheld 1 0
 Total 2 0

Page 22



Appendix 1
Service Area Nature of complaint  3rd Qtr 4th Qtr
Finance Handling of insurance claim 0 1

Not upheld 0 1
 Total 0 2

Service Area Nature of complaint 3rd Qtr 4th Qtr
Legal & Democratic Reminder for electoral register 1 0

Not upheld 0 1
Total 1 1

Complaint outcomes

The graph below shows the percentage of stage one complaints received that were either 
upheld or partially upheld during the second half of 2017/18. The overall percentage was 
similar for both quarters.

Lessons learned

Complaints provide the Council with valuable feedback which is used to develop and 
improve our services to meet the needs of our customers.  The following are examples of 
lessons learned and action taken as a result of complaints received during the third and 
fourth quarters of 2017-18.

 In response to a complaint regarding the actions of an operative from the Environmental 
Management Service, an apology was given to the resident. Arrangements were made 
for the operative to attend a training session to improve this aspect of their work which 
will be monitored through regular supervision meetings.  Page 23



Appendix 1

 Following a partially upheld complaint regarding enforcement of a planning condition, 
staff were reminded to double check on the requirements of any amendments made at 
committee prior to issuing a decision or discharging conditions.

 Further to a complaint regarding the handling of a telephone call to Parking Services, an 
apology was given to the customer and all staff will be receiving further training in 
customer care, which will include telephone contact.

 In response to two complaints regarding an event at the Town Hall, an apology was 
given to the customers.  The concerns raised were addressed with the catering and 
events team, which included staff training and changes being made to prevent a 
reoccurrence of the problems experienced.

 Following a complaint from a resident regarding damage to a grave, the Operational 
Supervisor contacted the resident to discuss her concerns. A replacement grave marker 
was made and the resident was happy that the grave had been tidied and an area that 
had collapsed had been repaired.  The officer also provided details for the resident to 
contact him if any similar issues arise in the future.

 Further to a complaint regarding a lack of response to reports of a damaged pavement, 
an apology was given and an officer visited the resident to view the problems the issue 
was causing to the resident’s cellar roof.  Works were undertaken to adjust the 
pavement levels and the resident confirmed that they were happy with the outcome. 

 In response to a complaint regarding call waiting times, a manager contacted the 
resident to apologise and explain that unfortunately the Contact Centre was 
experiencing a high volume of calls as it was the main billing period.  A letter of apology 
was also sent to the resident.

 Following a complaint regarding litter and a lack of bins within the resident’s area, a 
manager called the resident to discuss their concerns.  Arrangements were made for a 
supervisor to look at the issues regarding litter and the allocation of more bins within the 
area.  In addition, as the resident is part of a group that helps to clean up the area, the 
officer who deals with community and group litter picking also contacted the resident to 
offer support and advice.

Complaints received by Ward

Numbers of complaints reported by Ward are dependent upon customers providing their 
address details.  The graph below shows the numbers of complaints received by Ward 
during the second half of 2017-18.  It also indicates where address details have not been 
provided or the complainant resides outside of the Borough. 

Page 24



Appendix 1

As can be seen from the graph above, there were some fluctuations in the number of 
complaints received from residents in most wards over the two quarters.  There was no 
evident reason for this as the complaints related to a number of different service areas and 
a variety of issues.

Service Requests 

A large number of complaints received are in fact service requests.  A service request is an 
initial request for service or report of a fault, for example a report of a missed bin, or a pot 
hole that needs to be repaired.   Details of service requests are included below to evidence 
the very low numbers of requests that subsequently lead to complaints.  For example, the 
total number of complaints received by Environmental Management and Highways in the 
second half of this year was 139 and 82 respectively, however; the number of service 
requests dealt with by both services during the same period was significantly higher.

Highways

Service Area Requests Q3 Requests Q4
Bridges and Structures 9 16
Highways 4 3
Highway Maintenance 241 336
Network Development 46 69
Network Management /Traffic/Road Safety 238 271
Parking Services (including School Crossings) 59 50
Total 597 745

Page 25



Appendix 1

Environmental Management

Service Area Requests Q3 Requests Q4

New Wheelie bin request 3338 3785

Missed bin 1583 1949

Information/enquiry – street services 305 392

Fly tipping 1278 1614

Assisted collection 47 60

Remove bin 260 328

Bulky collection 721 781

Tree maintenance 211 167

Dead animal 49 29

Dog fouling 91 152

Other service request – Waste Services 791 1266

Untidy garden 180 306

Abandoned vehicle 119 136

Grass/shrub/hedge maintenance 53 44

Litter bin 69 50

Spillage on road 24 30

Graffiti 29 42

Sharps/drugs/paraphernalia 30 26

Trade waste 14 20

Fly posting 68 36

Ragwort/Knotweed 9 3

Travellers enquiry 3 0

Caddy liner request 2 0

Rights of Way 27 24

Total 9301 11240

Compliments

In addition to complaints, compliments are also received from customers and shared with 
the teams concerned.  The resident is always thanked for taking the time to contact the 
Council with their comments.

The graph below shows the total number of compliments received during 2017-18.  

A total of 168 compliments were recorded during the third and fourth quarters, a selection of 
which can be found below.  

Page 26



Appendix 1

“I would like to comment on the Advisor in the customer contact centre who has just nicely 
gone over and above what they would probably do in their daily job role. I had tried to re-
apply for my new blue badge on line which wasn’t very accessible for me to do, so she has 
just done the application for me on my behalf. I am aware that too often people are always 
complaining about council services but this particular young lady has definitely gone over 
and above what she should. Please pass this on to her.”

“I would like to leave feedback on how clean and tidy the cemetery at Heywood is. I have 
been numerous times this week and the driveway has no leaves on at all and those two 
guys are really polite. Really a nice environment and a credit to the council.”

“I have recently attended a number of events at the Rochdale Festival of Literature. The 
whole festival was of the highest quality with quality events really well organised…. I am 
looking forward to next year’s festival. Rochdale should feel proud of the festival and the 
work of the Festival Director and her staff.”

“I have just returned from walking down the pathway and to my surprise it had been litter 
picked to a very high standard. I spoke to the litter picker who was just leaving and he said 
he had noticed it was a mess and had cleaned it up. This guy should be commended for 
using his initiative as he has done an absolutely fantastic job!”

“The client has just rung to say how friendly, courteous and professional the Pest Control 
Officer was.  He is thrilled with the service he has received from RBC.”

Page 27



Appendix 1
“Thanks so much for everything you have done for us both. Our (wedding) day was perfect 
and that wouldn't have been possible without your help. Your calming influence really put us 
at ease at big moments. You made our day truly special.”

“Resident called to compliment the Council’s gritting teams who were out last night as they 
did a fantastic job. They were relentless and were working their hardest all night. She would 
like to say a massive thank you and that all the residents on Blackstone Edge Old Road are 
so very grateful for all their help.”

“Today was the first opportunity I have had to walk this path since it`s refurbishment and I 
am bound to say, the results are stunning! Where a matter of weeks ago there was a near 
derelict path which was in a serious state of disrepair and a hazard to many users, there is 
now a firm, well drained route with well-defined and easily climbed steps. These elements 
as well as the new stiles and fencing means the route is, once again, a pleasure to use. 
The new path should be much easier and safer for users of all age groups, many thanks for 
your prompt attention to this matter.”

Customer satisfaction with the process

The Customer Feedback Team monitors complaints received and recorded across the 
Council to ensure compliance with complaint policy timescales and consistency in 
implementation of the process.

During the second half of 2017-18, a total of 308 new complaints were received, and of 
these only 13 escalated to the next stage in the complaints process, indicating that the 
majority of customers were satisfied with the response and action taken by the service 
concerned at the lowest level.  

Page 28



Report to Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee

Date of Meeting 18th September 2018
Portfolio Cabinet Member for 

Children's Services
Report Author Joanne Elcock
Public/Private Document Public

Schools Final Outturns and Reportable Surplus 2017/18

Executive Summary

1.1

1.2

In line with the Scheme of Delegation with respect to school budgets, it is a 
requirement that the overall position on the balances held in schools be 
reported to the Overview and Scrutiny Committee.

This report provides details of the overall position of school balances and the 
level of reportable surpluses to enable members to scrutinise the level of 
balances held by schools.

Recommendation

2.1 It is recommended that members note this report.

Reason for Recommendation

3.1

3.2

Under the Schools Standard and Framework Act 1998 (as amended) and the 
Scheme for Financing Schools, local authorities in conjunction with their 
schools forum are required to review and challenge the level of surpluses held 
by individual schools.  In general, funds given to schools are for the purpose of 
educating the pupils in school at that time, although it is recognised that 
schools will accumulate some funds for specific longer term planned projects. 
Excessive accumulation of surpluses, unless saved for a planned purpose, 
could represent a loss of opportunity for these pupils.

Equity of funding for schools is an important element of contributing to the 
Council’s priorities and vision to build success and prosperity through 
encouraging local children to achieve the qualifications they need to prepare 
them for work and a prosperous life.

Page 29

Agenda Item 10



Key Points for Consideration

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

Schools with a surplus balance greater than 8% of its funding for a 
consecutive two year period are subject to challenge and review by the local 
authority in conjunction with Schools Forum. Potentially, under Rochdale’s 
Scheme for Financing Schools, any surpluses fitting these criteria and not 
deemed to be used for ‘eligible’ purposes can be clawed-back with re-
distribution to all schools via the fair funding formula.  It is for Forum to agree 
the Scheme and the local authority to administer on behalf of the School 
Forum.  A copy of the section of the Scheme dealing with reportable surpluses 
is provided at Appendix A.

Schools final outturns for 2017/18 and an overview of the level of surpluses in 
schools as at 31st March 2018 were reported to Schools Forum in June 2018.

Level of Balances - Final Outturn 2017/18

Outturn for 2017/18 showed total school balances of £11,110k; one school 
has a small deficit position of £27.5k.

The overall final Individual School Budget (ISB) balance for 2017/18 compared 
to 2016/17 is summarised in the table below. The table shows an increase in 
the overall surplus balance in nursery and special schools whereas the 
balances in primary and secondary schools have remained fairly static with 
just a minor drop overall.

Sector
Final 

2017/18
£000

Final 
2016/17

£000

Change

£000

Change

%

Nursery 48 22 26 118.00%

Primary 6,803 6,805 (2) (0.02%)

Secondary 3,127 3,134 (7) (0.22%)

Special 1,132 793 339 42.75%

Overall 11,110 10,754 356 3.31%

Balances overall represent around 8% of maintained schools’ funding for 
2017/18. Overall balances have increased by £356k or 3.31% from the 
2016/17 position. Balances in relation to the four primary schools that 
converted to academy status in 2017/18 have been excluded from the above 
figures.

Surplus balances for 2017/18 range from 0.7% to 34.5% of ISB. A breakdown 
is shown in the graph on the next page which highlights that the majority of 
schools have surplus balances in the region of between 5% and 8%.  

Page 30



4.7

4.8

4.9

The following graph shows the level of balances over the last five years, both 
overall and per sector.

Although it is the primary sector with the higher balance it should be noted that 
only approximately 20% of primary schools have significant balances; 13 out 
of 62 primary schools hold around 50% of the total primary sector balances.

It is also worth noting that capital funding available to schools has reduced 
significantly in the last few years; schools increasingly have to use revenue 
funds to carry out improvement works to school premises. This will have the 

Page 31



4.10

4.11

4.12

4.13

effect of increasing balances held by schools to enable them to contribute to 
the cost or any works taking place in the following financial year.

Reportable Surplus Balances 2017/18

Rochdale’s Scheme for Financing Schools allows for schools to carry forward 
balances from one financial year to the next but also contains a mechanism to 
clawback excess surplus balances where there is no clear plan of its use on 
eligible expenditure as per Appendix A.

The ‘balance control mechanism’ in the Scheme for Financing Schools 
ensures that schools with a surplus greater than 8%* of their ISB for two 
consecutive years are subject to review by the LA in conjunction with School 
Forum. Schools that fall into this category are considered to have a reportable 
surplus and governing bodies have to report details of the planned use of the 
amount in excess of the 8% to the LA. 

*Note that there is a threshold of 12% for small schools with less than 180 pupils and the Pupil 
Referral Unit.

There are currently 20 primary and 3 secondary schools with a surplus 
balance greater than the permitted threshold. Of these, 13 schools are subject 
to review in accordance with Section 4 of the Scheme for Financing Schools, 
i.e. they have a reportable surplus. All 13 schools have been written to and a 
further report will be presented at the October 2018 Schools Forum detailing 
school representations.

The LA will be verifying that those schools that had a reportable surplus at the 
end of 2016/17 have used their surplus balances in accordance with the 
planned use reported last year. This detail will form part of the report referred 
to in the previous paragraph.

Costs and Budget Summary

5.1

5.2

There are no cost implications in relation to the contents of this report.

Following review of the use of reportable surpluses, Schools Forum has the 
authority to claw back from individual schools any reportable surplus amounts 
that have not been or will not be utilised by schools in accordance with the 
Scheme. Any funds clawed back will be re-distributed across all schools via 
the fair funding formula.

Risk and Policy Implications

There are no specific risk or policy issues in relation to this report for 
members to consider.

6.1

Consultation

7.1 There is no requirement for consultation on the contents of this report.

Page 32



Background Papers Place of Inspection

8.

For Further Information Contact: Joanne Elcock, Tel: 01706 9250036214, 
christine.clarkson@rochdale.gov.uk

Appendix A

SECTION 4: THE TREATMENT OF SURPLUSES AND DEFICIT BALANCES ARISING IN RELATION TO 
BUDGET SHARES

4.1 The Right to Carry Forward Surplus Balances

Governing bodies may carry forward from one financial year to the next, any unspent provision from the 
budgets, including those from previous years. 

4.2 Reporting on the Intended Use of Surplus Balances

Governing bodies are required to report to the LA on the use to which schools intend to make of surplus 
balances held as resources in the budget plan, in circumstances where the reserves total more than 8% 
of the School Budget Share for all Schools except small schools (pupil numbers less than 180) where 
the threshold is 12%, for a consecutive 2 year period.

4.3 Controls on Surplus Balances 

Surplus balances held by schools as permitted under this scheme are subject to the following 
restrictions with effect from 1 April 2011: 

4.3.1 The Authority shall calculate by 31 May each year the surplus balance, if any, held by each school as at 
the preceding 31 March. For this purpose the balance will be the recurrent balance as defined in the 
Consistent Financial Reporting Framework.  If the schools has had a surplus greater than 8% (12% for 
small schools) in a consecutive 2 year period the school will be required to outline the specific purposes 
for which these fund are being held.,

4.3.2 The Authority shall deduct from the calculated balance any amounts for which the school has a prior 
year commitment to pay from the surplus balance. 

4.3.3 The Authority shall then deduct from the resulting sum any amounts which the governing body of the 
school has declared to be assigned for specific purposes permitted by the authority, and which the 
authority is satisfied are properly assigned. To count as properly assigned, amounts must not be 
retained beyond the period stipulated for the purpose in question, without the consent of the Authority. In 
considering whether any sums are properly assigned the Authority may also take into account any 
previously declared assignment of such sums but may not take any change in planned assignments to 
be the sole reason for considering that a sum is not properly assigned.

4.3.4 For the purposes of this part of the scheme, specific purposes permitted by the Authority are as follows:

Repairs and Maintenance

 Revenue contributions to specific capital projects
 Essential Health and Safety Works
 Essential Security works
 Other specified Repair and Maintenance

Investment: Information Technology

 Major investment in Information Technology equipment and/or facilities

Short term staffing

Page 33



 Additional teaching or support staff (12 months only)

Other permitted uses

 Investment in Community facilities
 Pupil Premium monies carried forward – up to 12% of the pupil premium allocation for the 

financial year.

4.3.5 To evidence the use of the surplus, in all cases a school will be required to specify the nature of the 
work and provide an estimate of cost together with the timescale for implementation.

4.3.6 If the result of steps 4.3.1 to 4.3.3 is a sum greater than 12% of the current year's budget share for all 
schools then the Authority shall deduct from the current year's budget share an amount equal to the 
excess. 

4.3.7 Funds deriving from sources other than the Authority will be taken into account in this calculation if paid 
into the budget share account of the school, whether under provisions in this scheme or otherwise.

4.3.8 Funds held in relation to a school's exercise of powers under s.27 of the Education Act 2002 (community 
facilities) will not be taken into account unless added to the budget share surplus by the school as 
permitted by the Authority. 

4.3.9 The total of any amounts deducted from schools' budget shares by the Authority under this provision are 
to be applied to the Schools Budget of the Authority.

Page 34



Item 4 

_______________________________________________________________________________________ 
   

GMCA Economy, Business Growth & Skills  
Overview & Scrutiny Committee 

Page 1 of 10 
13 July 2018 

 

 
DRAFT GREATER MANCHESTER COMBINED AUTHORITY (GMCA) 

ECONOMY, BUSINESS GROWTH AND SKILLS OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
13 JULY 2018 AT 6.00 pm AT THE GMCA OFFICES 

 
 
Present:   Councillor Michael Holly (Rochdale) (in the Chair) 
Bolton:   Councillor Susan Haworth 
Bury:   Councillor Robert Caserta 
Bury:   Councillor Mary Whitby 
Oldham:  Councillor Chris Goodwin 
Oldham:   Councillor Valerie Leach 
Rochdale:  Councillor Raymond Dutton (substitute) 
Salford:  Councillor Karen Garrido  
Salford:  Councillor Kate Lewis 
Stockport:  Councillor Jude Wells 
Stockport:  Councillor Mark Hunter 
Tameside:  Councillor Yvonne Cartey 
Wigan:   Councillor Charles Rigby   
 
In attendance  
 
Other   Mike Blackburn, Chair GM LEP 
   Tim Newns, Chief Executive, MIDAS  
 
GMCA   Simon Nokes, Executive Director Policy and Strategy 
   John Holden, Assistant Director Research and Strategy 
   John Steward, Principal: Digital Growth and Internationalisation Policy 

 Susan Ford, Statutory Scrutiny Officer  
   Emma Stonier, Governance and Scrutiny Officer  
    
 
E47/18   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Luke Raikes (Manchester), Daniel 
Meredith (Rochdale) and Barry Brotherton (Trafford). 
 
E48/18   CHAIR’S ANNOUNCEMENTS AND URGENT BUSINESS 
 
The Chair requested that Item 6 – Brexit Impacts was taken before Item 5 - Local Enterprise 
Partnership.  
 
E49/18   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 
There were no declarations of interest received.  
 
E50/18   MINUTES OF THE LAST MEETING HELD ON 8 JUNE 2018 
 
The minutes of the meeting held on 8 June 2018 were submitted for approval. 

Page 35

Agenda Item 11



Item 4 

_______________________________________________________________________________________ 
   

GMCA Economy, Business Growth & Skills  
Overview & Scrutiny Committee 

Page 2 of 10 
13 July 2018 

 

 
RESOLVED: 
 
That the minutes of the last meeting held 8 June 2018 be approved as a correct record.  
 
E51/18   BREXIT IMPACTS 
 
John Holden, Assistant Director Research and Strategy, GMCA, presented a report which 

updated Members on the latest position on the impacts and potential implications of 
Brexit on Greater Manchester.  

 
Key areas highlighted were; 
 

 There was still significant uncertainty for businesses and workers in the UK about what 
to expect after the UK’s exit from the EU. 

 Forecasted economic growth in the UK had been the highest in the G7 and this was now 
the lowest. 

 Purchasing Manager’s Surveys (PMIs) indicated continued, but slower, economic 
growth.  

 There had been strong trade performance in 2017 helped by the weak pound. It was 
noted that trade performance going forward may struggle.  

 Businesses have indicated in the majority that expected levels of investment had not 
changed compared to pre-referendum. 

 Businesses have expressed concern about potential customs delays and attracting and 
retaining talent. 

 Retail performance remained strong with continued consumer confidence, however 
there was some evidence this was beginning to flatten.  

 Trade, regulations and access to EU funding were bound up with EU negotiations 
meaning that it was not possible to understand impacts relating to these. GM had 
successfully secured significant EU funding in recent years and Universities had reported 
concerns about future access to research funding and employees with relevant skills. 
The Government would be consulting shortly on their proposed Shared Prosperity Fund.  

 Performance in the property investment, housing and planning markets remained 
strong.  

 Unemployment had increased in recent months and the number of people in GM 
claiming unemployment benefits was at a 46 month high. The weak pound and inflation 
had also caused the cost of living to rise and concerns about the impact of these on 
economic inclusion were highlighted. 

 Government had undertaken regional analyses of the potential impact of different 
Brexit scenarios but have not formally released these. In March 2018 the House of 
Commons Exiting the European Union Committee released a summary and this 
suggested that there will be an adverse effect on the economy of the UK and all its 
regions, with the North West one of the four regions hit the hardest under both ‘soft’ 
and ‘hard’ Brexit scenarios.  

 The GMCA had undertaken analysis to understand the potential cost which could be 
imposed on key sectors of the GM economy when the UK leaves the EU. Potential 
additional costs for GM of an increase in non-tariff barriers would be £170m per annum 
for deal similar to the EEA, £320m for a deal similar to the average Free Trade 

Page 36



Item 4 

_______________________________________________________________________________________ 
   

GMCA Economy, Business Growth & Skills  
Overview & Scrutiny Committee 

Page 3 of 10 
13 July 2018 

 

Agreement or £380m if there were no deal and the UK was to trade under World Trade 
Organisation (WHO) rules.  

 Employment sectors most at risk from a reduction in access to EU workers and skills 
shortages had been identified as; distribution, hotels and restaurants, banking and 
finance, manufacturing and public admin, health and education.  

 The Government had published the White Paper on the future relationship between the 
UK and the EU on 12 July 2018. The GMCA was going to undertake analysis of this to 
assess what this might mean for the GM economy.  

 
Questions and comments from Members included; 
 

 What was the GM’s role in relation to building resilience and contingency planning? 
Officers confirmed that the role of GM was; to understand the risks and ensure partners 
are aware of these to enable them to be factored into business decisions; to ensure that 
specific GM issues are articulated and understood by Government and that the North of 
England and GM has voice in the Brexit negotiations.  GM was part of a Department for 
Exiting the European Union working group providing information to Government and 
were pushing for the regional impact analyses undertaken by Government to be shared. 
Additionally ensuring GM had the necessary leverage to enable residents to be provided 
with the requisite skills for the local labour market was a crucial role.  

 The Brexit Impacts analysis indicated negative outcomes. It was asked whether GM had 
identified opportunities arising from Brexit. The review of the analysis from 
independent research organisations across the UK suggests an overall negative impact 
on the UK economy. Potential opportunities were outlined as; the possibility of 
negotiating trading arrangements with countries which were more flexible and 
transparent, and the lobbying of government regarding the economic framework of the 
UK.  

 Whether, in relation to exports from GM to the EU, it was possible to identify areas 
within the conurbation which may be more significantly affected by Brexit and provide 
more focused assistance? The Growth Company works with specific businesses and 
advises them on the potential impact of Brexit and risks and is in a position to support 
businesses through the transition period.  

 How the GM unemployment figures compared to national figures? It was confirmed 
that overall more people in GM were unemployed than the national average. Members 
also asked whether this was as a result of Brexit. It was noted that it was difficult to 
ascertain exactly what was driving a rise in unemployment due to the range of factors 
which can contribute to this.  

 Members questioned whether officers could provide comment on the positive findings 
from the GM Chamber of Commerce’s economic survey. Officers noted that currently 
the majority of business were focusing on the ‘day job’ and that Brexit was not affecting 
day-to-day decision making.   

 How GM can ensure residents and businesses are prepared for Brexit? The GMS 
ambitions were to ensure that GM residents were equipped for future jobs. There was 
also a broader work programme in place around skills and employment and devolution 
of the Adult Education Budget (AEB) which would provide GM with more flexibility 
around providing residents with relevant skills. It was also highlighted that furnishing 
GM residents with the relevant education/skills for the labour market was a journey 
which began from school readiness onwards.  

Page 37



Item 4 

_______________________________________________________________________________________ 
   

GMCA Economy, Business Growth & Skills  
Overview & Scrutiny Committee 

Page 4 of 10 
13 July 2018 

 

 A Member noted that section 3.6 outlined four necessary steps to manage the risks and 
take advantages of the opportunities from Brexit and asked for a progress update 
relating to these. The following updates were provided; 

   
 The Local Industrial Strategy was under development and supply of skills was 

expected to be a key component of this. 
 There had been no progress in securing Government commitment to undertake 

a deeper regional analyses of the potential impacts of Brexit. Government have 
not published the analysis undertaken due to concerns around the weakening of 
their negotiating position.  

 Meetings have taken place between the Mayor of Greater Manchester and other 
metro Mayors and the Department for Exiting the European Union but no 
commitment has been made to GM or the North having a formal voice in 
negotiations.  

 The return of powers is bound up in negotiations and therefore can only be 
settled once a final agreement has been reached with the EU. GM has been 
having discussions with the Scottish and Welsh Governments also.  

 

 Whether it was felt that the analysis undertaken was overly pessimistic or optimistic?  It 
was stressed that economic forecasting was not an exact science, however from the 
analysis undertaken it was clear that reducing access to markets and restricting trade 
had a long term impact on growth. 

 Had the ‘proper assessment’ of potential Brexit deals on GM (referenced in 3.5 of the 
Brexit Monitor) been carried out? Analysis undertaken so far was a first assessment of 
potential impacts. Officers also noted the need for Government to carry out deeper 
regional analyses of Brexit Impacts. It was also noted that GM analysis would be 
updated once there was a better understanding of the Government’s White Paper.  

 
RESOLVED: 
 

1. That the Brexit Impacts update report be noted. 
 
E52/18   LOCAL ENTERPRISE PARTNERSHIP 
 
Mike Blackburn, Chair GM Local Enterprise Partnership (LEP), presented a report which gave an 
update on the work of the GM LEP in overseeing the delivery of the Greater Manchester 
Strategy (GMS).   
 
Key areas highlighted were; 
 

 The LEP is a private-sector led body working in partnership with the public sector and 
the GMCA. 

 LEPs are provided with £500k funding from Government to strengthen capacity and 
deliver strategic priorities. In GM the Board has committed this funding to focus on key 
thematic areas including refreshing the GMS and supporting the development of the 
GM research and evidence base. 

 A Government review of LEPS and their membership and governance was currently 
underway. This was expected to report soon and initial feedback for GM had been 
positive.     

Page 38



Item 4 

_______________________________________________________________________________________ 
   

GMCA Economy, Business Growth & Skills  
Overview & Scrutiny Committee 

Page 5 of 10 
13 July 2018 

 

 The work which the LEP had contributed to in GM, which included; a key role in the 
development of a Local Industrial Strategy (this has included the convening of Foresight 
Group to think about strategy for between the next 10-30 years), the 
Internationalisation Strategy, development of the Transport 2040 strategy, 
development of a Manufacturing Strategy and the Manufacturing Institute supporting 
the extension of leadership capabilities in smaller companies and the securing of around 
£500m of Growth Deal funding for GM.  

 The LEP has played a fundamental role in bringing together LEP Chairs across the North 
of England and has led on bringing Growth Hubs together also.  

 Through NP11 LEPs had been asked to assist with the development of an economic 
strategy for the North of England. The GM LEP had been made the lead for investment.   

 Transport for the North had invited LEP Chairs to be on their Board to ensure there was 
business representation when developing transport strategy.   

 That the LEP was committed to operating in a transparent and accountable manner and 
had put in place a number of key standards and practices to ensure governance and 
decision making was fit for purpose. Meetings were held in public and in a recent 
governance audit undertaken by Government the GM LEP had been rated outstanding 
or good in all areas.  

 
Members welcomed the report and looked forward to having sight of the outcome of the 
Governments review into LEPs.  
 
Questions and comments from Members included; 
 

 Were inclusive growth and social value on the agenda for the GM LEP? Members were 
updated that the LEP had been involved in the development of the Working Well 
programme and the skills and employment agenda which would assist with driving 
inclusive growth across GM. The LEP was also supportive of the Mayor’s work to 
develop a good employment charter and was encouraging employers to sign up this 
charter once finalised. Work was also underway with the Greater Manchester Centre for 
Voluntary Organisations (GMCVO) with regards to how social value can be incorporated 
into the private sector. This work was looking at how local authorities used social value.  

 How can the LEP evidence their best value and successes and what was the LEPs biggest 
success?  There was a challenge in isolating the LEP’s role as it worked so closely with 
the GMCA. GM has had a longstanding arrangement to involve the private sectors in its 
governance, prior to the formation of LEPs GM had had a body which helped to drive 
economic strategy. Some of the key successes outlined were; the securing of the 
Growth Deal from Government in which the GM LEP Chair had played a key role 
alongside elected Council Leaders; the fact that the Growth Hub was considered as 
leading the way nationally; the development of the Manchester - China Forum and the 
assistance provided in the development of the GMS Implementation Plan and business 
planning. One of the biggest successes relating to the Growth Hub had been the receipt 
of an award for their impact on people and businesses in GM.  

 Were there any perceived downsides to the close partnership working of the public and 
private sector in GM? A potential downside was noted as perceptions that the sectors 
were too closely aligned, however overall it was felt that the positives of the way the 
LEP worked in GM outweighed any negatives. The positive views of international visitors 
to GM on the way local government and business worked together was also highlighted 
to Members.  

Page 39



Item 4 

_______________________________________________________________________________________ 
   

GMCA Economy, Business Growth & Skills  
Overview & Scrutiny Committee 

Page 6 of 10 
13 July 2018 

 

 What was the vision for the future of apprenticeships? Members were informed that 
the Bridge GM programme was working with schools and businesses to increase the 
number of young people taking apprenticeships. Additionally the introduction of degree 
apprenticeships at Manchester Metropolitan University was highlighted. Different 
models of engagement with young people also needed to be considered as did the 
levels of future funding received in GM for apprenticeships.  

 What were felt to be the most significant problems and challenges facing GM? The 
challenges outlined included; uncertainty around Brexit and the outcome of 
negotiations around trade, ensuring there was the right skills for the labour market and 
an aging population. The importance of stability and certainty for business, to enable 
business decisions about investment/stabilisation, was also emphasised. 

 Members asked for further information about the work of the four task and finish 
groups referenced in the report and noted the importance of having a mixture of high 
profile global firms and locally grown companies who scale up and/or expand. The LEP 
worked with the Manufacturing Institute, the Chamber of Commerce and Federation of 
Small Businesses to support the scale up. A LEP update report on the task and finish 
group into start-up/scale up of businesses would be circulated to the Committee. 
Members also requested they receive, where appropriate, further information 
regarding the other task and finish groups and questioned whether the groups included 
outside expertise. It was confirmed that this had taken place, for example the start-up-
scale up group had had discussions with other growth hubs.  

 Members requested more detail about the work with Cheshire East to develop the 
Alderley Park. GM and Cheshire East had worked together to developing a future plan 
for this site. Alderley Park was owned by Manchester Science Park (MSP) and more 
employees were now employed on site than previously by Astra Zeneca. The site was 
also embedded with the Manchester Corridor and connected into the Health and Social 
Care Devolution agenda.   

  
RESOLVED: 
 

1. That the update on the work of the Greater Manchester Local Enterprise Partnership in 
overseeing delivery of the Greater Manchester Strategy was noted.  

 
2. That the LEP Start UP Scale UP Update report was circulated to Members.  

 
3. That further detail regarding the four LEP task and finish groups was sent to Members.  

 
4. That the Government LEP review findings were shared with Members.  

 
E53/18 GM INTERNATIONILISATION STRATEGY IMPLEMENTATION PLAN 

UPDATE 
 
John Steward, Principal: Digital Growth and Internationalisation Policy, GMCA and Tim Newns, 
Chief Executive, MIDAS, Manchester’s Inward Investment Agency presented a report which 
provided an update on the review of the GM Internationalisation Strategy, on the progress with 
implementation of the strategy, the key actions proposed for the next 18 months and the key 
issues impacting on its delivery.  
 
Key items highlighted were; 

Page 40

https://www.greatermanchester-ca.gov.uk/download/meetings/id/3463/4_lep_start_up_scale_up_update


Item 4 

_______________________________________________________________________________________ 
   

GMCA Economy, Business Growth & Skills  
Overview & Scrutiny Committee 

Page 7 of 10 
13 July 2018 

 

 

 A number of key successes over the past 2 years with particular attention drawn to the 
growth of Manchester Airport’s international business and tourist numbers with new 
routes being secured to India and China, an increase in tourism numbers to the region, a 
6.1% increase in inward investment as opposed to a target of 5% and trade exports 
remaining consistent.  The importance of a single strategy, which all partners are working 
towards, was emphasised as being a key factor in the successful securing of new airline 
routes.  

 Concerns associated with Brexit which included; potential perceptions of the UK, in 
relation to being ‘open for business’, access to EU research funding for GM Universities, 
the future of immigration policy and the ability of recruiting international talent in areas 
where GM has a skills gap.  

 8 key priorities for 2018/19 have been identified from the detailed implementation plan 
and progress against these has been RAG rated. These included; UK magnet for Foreign 
Direct Investment (FDI), being the best UK destination for international students and 
building the GM brand and reputation.  

 The rise in property demand and pressure on property prices, particularly in the centre, 
and how GM could potentially leverage businesses to look at the wider area. There were 
also some early indicators of wage inflation, particularly in the technology/digital skills 
sector. 

 Challenges associated with the ambition outlined in the GMS for an increase in higher 
value jobs and how this is tackled. 

 Guidance the strategy provided to companies when operating in international markets, 
such as the universities and football clubs and the importance of the public and private 
sector working together to achieve the ambitions outlined was stressed.  

 That a report on this review scheduled to be submitted to the GMCA at the end of July.  
 
Questions and comments from Members included; 
 

 Reasons for the inclusion of the UAE as one of six key markets for GM. Members were 
informed that the UAE had been included as GM connections to this market had already 
been in existence. Initial investment into GM through Abu Dhabi and Manchester City 
Football Club – including housing in East Manchester and University of Manchester 
student accommodation – was also highlighted. Etihad Airways and connections through 
transport hubs to international markets in Asia and Australasia was also noted. Members 
were also updated about a tourism programme which Marketing Manchester were 
running regarding attracting visitors from the region into GM.  

 The report stated that 6/10 local authorities had been present at MIPIN in 2017 and it 
was noted that this should be 7/10 as Stockport were also present. It was also confirmed 
that each area in GM had representation at MIPIN in some capacity. Members also noted 
that there 247 delegates from GM at MIPIN and stated that there should be transparency 
over who attends and how this is funded. Members were informed that over 90% of the 
delegates were from the private sector and that the majority of local authority attendees 
were sponsored by the private sector. Evidencing the impact of MIPIN was challenging 
but it was emphasised that outside London GM was the most invested in place.  Each year 
a report was produced following MIPIN and every three years a review of MIPIN was 
undertaken.   

 A Member asked what was felt to be the biggest barrier to achieving the vision outlined 
in the strategy. It was stated that changing cultural perceptions of investment, particularly 

Page 41



Item 4 

_______________________________________________________________________________________ 
   

GMCA Economy, Business Growth & Skills  
Overview & Scrutiny Committee 

Page 8 of 10 
13 July 2018 

 

around leadership and management, was one of the significant challenges for GM 
achieving its ambitions.  

 That it was vital that the benefits of the internationalisation strategy and inward 
investment were felt across all districts in GM. 

 The income generated by Manchester Airport and its expansion was welcomed. Members 
also raised concerns about the introduction of drop off charges, complaints received 
about poor service and disability access. Manchester Airport was in a state of transition 
with a £1bn programme of investment underway and it was also stated that the airport 
was a successful and valuable asset to GM. Individual complaints were required to be 
raised directly with the Airport.  

 More information was requested about the delivery of the High Potential Opportunity 
(HPO) pilot with the Department for International Trade (DIT), which was focussing on 
promoting Rochdale/Bury/Oldham through the building of a manufacturing/advanced 
materials proposition aimed at the aerospace and auto sectors. Members were informed 
that this pilot was investigating how the supply chain for these industries could be 
sourced locally. One of the additional benefits was also the potential to minimise 
disruption to the supply chain. MIDAS would circulate a recent presentation on HPO to 
the committee. Members were informed that DIT was also looking at developing a 
proposition related to advanced materials and a pilot about the future of packaging, with 
a particular focus on the chemical, food and drink and textile industries.   In relation to 
this Members were provided with further information about current work taking place in 
GM. This included; 
 

 Encouraging SMEs to invest in exporting and establishing deeper relationships 
with key markets to assist with driving inclusive growth. 

 Inward investment was currently biased towards the ‘core’ with 70% of this 
focused in Manchester City Centre and Salford. MIDAS have been exploring what 
can be done to widen the geographical areas inward investment has an impact on 
and has begun focused work with companies in each GM local authority.  

 Looking at town centre development to increase the number of office based 
projects. Work was taking place with local authorities around how this was 
developed further.  

 Promoting the future employment sites once these have been identified in the 
Greater Manchester Spatial Framework (GMSF).  

 
RESOLVED: 
 

1. That the review of the GM Internationalisation Plan was noted.  
 

2. That the status of the annual report and three yearly review into MIPIN was clarified 
and that, if available, further information was provided to the Committee regarding the 
costs/benefits of MIPIN.  

 
3. That the presentation on High Potential Opportunity (HPO) – Lightweight Structures was 

circulated to members.  
 
 
E54/18 WORK PROGRAMME 
 

Page 42



Item 4 

_______________________________________________________________________________________ 
   

GMCA Economy, Business Growth & Skills  
Overview & Scrutiny Committee 

Page 9 of 10 
13 July 2018 

 

Susan Ford, Statutory Scrutiny Officer, presented the work programme for 2018/19.  
 
Following discussion;  
 

 Members requested that the item on Women’s Employability be provisionally scheduled 
for November 2018, subject to the availability of representatives from the Fawcett 
Society. Potential alternative dates were noted as February or June 2019. 

 Members agreed that the Task and Finish Group would report to the Committee in either 
October or November 2018. It was noted that this should happen prior to the report on 
the Employer Charter being taken to the GMCA.   

 Members requested that Welfare Reform was added to the work programme for January 
2019 and a representative from the DWP invited.  

 Members requested that an item was added to the work programme for 2019 regarding 
the Growth Hub and inward investment.  

 
RESOLVED: 
 
That the work programme be updated as outlined above.  
 
E55/18 DIGITAL FULL FIBRE INVESTMENT PROGRAMME 
 
Members received a report for noting which provided an update on the work being undertaken 
to accelerate full fibre investment across GM further to the update given at the February 
Scrutiny meeting.  
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That the progress made towards the implementation of the GM Full Fibre Investment 
Programme, the programme governance that had been put in place and the wider benefits 
arising from the implementation of the programme be noted.  
  
E56/18 WELFARE REFORM 
 
Members received a report for noting which provided an update on welfare reform and the roll 
out of Universal Credit in Greater Manchester, the latest monitoring of the impacts of these 
changes, and proposed activity to be undertaken to ensure the successful delivery of the 
Greater Manchester Strategy.  
 
It was agreed that a further briefing session would be arranged for Members of this Scrutiny 
Committee and the Housing, Planning and Environment Scrutiny Committee regarding Welfare 
Reform.  
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That the following all be noted; 
 

 The scale of welfare reform undertaken since appendix 2012 (appendix 1); 

 The new GM Welfare Reform dashboard (appendix 2) and the case studies of individual 
residents affected by reforms and the UC roll out (appendix 3); 

Page 43



Item 4 

_______________________________________________________________________________________ 
   

GMCA Economy, Business Growth & Skills  
Overview & Scrutiny Committee 

Page 10 of 10 
13 July 2018 

 

 The proposed areas of focus and suggested actions to be undertaken by GMCA and 
partners (appendix 4). 

 
That a briefing session be arranged for members regarding welfare reform.  
 
E57/18 DATE AND TIME OF NEXT MEETING  
 
Friday 17th August, 2.00pm, Boardroom, Churchgate House, Manchester, M1 6EU   

Page 44



1 
 

Item 4 
 

DRAFT GREATER MANCHESTER COMBINED AUTHORITY 
HOUSING, PLANNING AND ENVIRONMENT OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

12 JULY 2018 AT 6:00PM AT THE GMCA OFFICES 
 
 
Present: Councillor Lisa Smart (Stockport) (in the Chair) 
  
Bolton Councillor Shamim Abdullah  
 Councillor Andrew Morgan 
Tameside Councillor Mike Glover 
Bury Councillor Dorothy Gunther 
Wigan Councillor Lynne Holland 
 Councillor Michael Winstanley 
 Councillor Fred Walker (Substitute) 
Rochdale Councillor Linda Robinson 
Manchester Councillor Paula Sadler 
 Councillor James Wilson 
  
In attendance:  
Network Rail Martin Frobisher (LNW Route Managing Director) 
Northern Liam Sumpter (Regional Director) 
TfGM Simon Warburton (Strategy Director) 
 Gareth Turner (Head of Fares & Ticketing) 
 Raj Chandarana (Stakeholder Engagement) 
GMCA Officers Susan Ford (Statutory Scrutiny Officer) 
 Anne Morgan (Head of Planning) 
 Jamie Fallon (Governance & Scrutiny) 

 
 
M70/HPE         APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Laura Booth (Stockport), Stuart 
Dickman (Salford), James Larkin (Oldham), Catherine Preston (Bury), Graham Whitham 
(Trafford).  
 

M71/HPE         CHAIR’S ANNOUNCEMENTS AND URGENT BUSINESS 
 

There was no urgent business. 
 
 
M72/HPE         DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

Page 45



2 
 

 
There were no declaration of interests raised.  

 
 
M73/HPE         MINUTES OF THE LAST MEETING HELD 5 JUNE 2018 
 

The minutes of the last meeting dated 5 June 2018 were submitted for approval.  
 
The Chair advised that a Member has requested that section M57 of the minutes be 
amended to remove the names of those who submitted nominations.   
 
Members noted that there was one outstanding action arising from the previous minutes 
and TfGM have confirmed that the escalator at Bury interchange that gives access to 
Metrolink platforms has now been fixed.   
 

RESOLVED:    That the minutes of the meeting held on 5 June 2018 be approved as a correct record                                               
subject to the amendment raised.  

 
M74/HPE        RAIL PERFORMANCE IN GREATER MANCHESTER AND THE IMPLEMENTATION OF THE 

MAY 2018 TIMETABLE IMPROVEMENTS – MEMBER QUESTION AND ANSWER SESSION 
 

The Chair welcomed representatives from Network Rail and Northern to the meeting and 
extended thanks for attending to answer the committee’s questions. Martin Frobisher 
(LNW Route Managing Director, Network Rail) opened the discussion by apologising for 
the disruption caused to rail passengers. Liam Sumpter (Regional Director, Northern) and 
Raj Chandarana (Stakeholder Engagement) from Northern echoed the apology noting that 
it had been an extremely difficult time for commuters.    
 
The Chair reported that Members had received a helpful briefing from officers to inform 
the discussion. Members raised a number of questions, the main areas covered were:   

 

 What is the impact of underperformance on providers, given the severity of the impact 
on passengers? The franchise agreement between Northern, Rail North and the 
Department for Transport specifies targets, where performance targets are not met 
Northern have to contribute towards a reinvestment pot ear marked to improve 
performance. Network Rail must pay compensation where they are responsible for 
performance issues. The amount Northern must pay is based on a formula and can range 
from ten to hundreds of pounds per minute. The formula applied to cancellations can 
range from hundreds to thousands of pounds dependent on the class of the train and 
route affected. Northern do not make decisions on whether to delay or cancel a train on 
the basis of cost and always put customer first as the ultimate cost to Northern is 
passengers opting to travel by alternative modes of transport. It was acknowledged that 
train performance also impacts on wider issues from congestion, air quality, to where 
people choose to buy homes and apply for jobs.  

Page 46



3 
 

 
 

 Members requested that both Network Rail and Northern confirm the amount they have 
paid for delays and cancellations following the May 21st 2018 timetable was introduced. 
Northern could only confirm that the amount was significant.  

 

 Concerns were raised about the level of engagement with the public throughout the 
disruption and explored what contingency plans would be taken in future to avoid a 
similar incident occurring.  Northern reported that they were not aware of the scale of 
the challenge until days before the timetable implementation noting that a 
communications plan was developed and senior managers were deployed to stations 
were services were most effected to answer customer questions. Once the scale of the 
issues became apparent an interim timetable was introduced on 4 June 2018 which 
removed a number of services to enable performance to restabilise and to facilitate staff 
training. The timetable was always due to run until 29 July 2018 when the Liverpool 
blockade was planned to end. A live process is now underway in order to understand what 
services will be reintroduced whilst they focus on stabilising the network.  

 

 When can passengers expect a satisfactory level of service to resume?  Northern 
confirmed that performance is improving by the day noting that immediately after the 
introduction of the May timetable there were up to 300 cancellations per day but since 
the interim timetable was introduced this has dropped to single figures. The Public 
Performance Measure (PPM) monitors how many trains arrive within five minutes of the 
scheduled time, this initially dropped to 5% but has now returned to a relatively 
consistent 83-85% across whole of North.  It was noted that the severe and prolonged 
warm weather has also impacted on services.  
 

 Northern have developed a Performance Improvement Plan with Rail North and are 
considering the implications of the Ordsall Chord and how its performance can be 
maximised. Currently if the Leeds to Manchester service is delayed this impacts on 
interlinking trains on the network.  

 

 Have Northern recruited enough staff given many of the reasons for delays and 
cancellations were due to a lack of drivers? It is a misconception that Northern have 
insufficient crew to service the network. The reasons why staffing became a challenge 
was due to insufficient time to train staff. In context, Northern would usually have to 
change 20% of services with 40 weeks to plan and prepare. In this instance, 90% of 
services were changed with only 16 weeks to plan and prepare noting that training drivers 
takes between 12-18 months.  

 

 One Member explored whether the incident had significantly impacted on the number of 
passengers travelling by train? It was confirmed that immediately after the introduction 
of the May timetable passenger numbers were significantly reduced and there was 

Page 47



4 
 

anecdotal evidence that roads became more congested. Passenger numbers have begun 
to recover but there is still a challenge especially given the media interest surrounding 
the incident. Northern are focusing on consistently providing a stable service whilst 
continuing with their investment programme to; increase services, capacity and introduce 
new trains.  

 

 One Member asked whether the extra trains mentioned would be new stock. Northern 

confirmed that as part of their transformation programme they have committed to 

introducing 98 brand new, high quality, purpose built trains and the project is on schedule 

with the first train in the depot undergoing checks. In addition, second hand stock is being 

sourced from other parts of the network to support their desire to increase capacity 

adding that as part of the Great North Rail project all Pacer trains will be phased out. 

Northern invited Members to visit the depot for a tour of the new trains.  

 

 Members queried whether plans to electrify the route between Lostock and Wigan had 
been approved and if it wasn’t how they could galvanise investment in the North. 
Network Rail confirmed that they have submitted a feasibility study to DfT which is under 
consideration. It is understood that there is not currently funding to cover the full project 
which would require a significant investment of £40 million and  require a number of 
bridges to be rebuilt which would in turn impact congestion.  
 

 Network Rail confirmed that there continues to be vast investment in the north noting 

that the Great North Rail Project will provide 2000 extra services per week. The Ordsall 

Chord is now open, there are now electrified routes to Blackpool, and the Liverpool 

scheme is near to completion. Huge civil engineering projects are underway which are 

highly complex from driving tunnels through the hillside in Farnworth and raising bridges 

to make way for bigger trains. Electrifying the track between Manchester and Preston has 

been extremely challenging due to the discovery of old mine workings and unstable sandy 

ground conditions but is now making progress. Members were unanimous in their 

support for investments in the north.  

 

 TfGM concluded that the incident had been a learning curve for the industry and partners 
are committed to putting the issues right. A governance review around Rail North is 
currently underway led by the Leeds Combined Authority in order to avoid a similar issue 
reoccurring.  The significant achievements made over the last 20 years were noted; with 
the commuters into the centre by train doubling and which has contributed towards GM’s 
economic success. Providers are working collectively to coordinate information to enable 
timely information to be provided to passengers so that they can make informed 
decisions on how to travel (e.g. cross mode). It was noted that rail providers have made 
the sensible decision to avoid making significant changes in December to enable them to 
stabilise services.  

 

Page 48



5 
 

RESOLVED:                  1. That Northern and Network Rail provide figures regarding the amount they have 
had to reinvest into improving services since 21 May 2018, as a result of delays 
and cancellations,   

 2. Members to notify the Statutory Scrutiny Officer if they take up Northern’s offer 
to visit the new trains in the depot.   

 
M75/HPE         WALKING AND CYCLING UPDATE 
 

Consideration was given to a report that provided an overview of the cycling and walking 
activities undertaken by TfGM as part of an integrated transport network.  
 
Simon Warburton, Strategy Director at TfGM, introduced the item and highlighted the 
following areas:  
 

 The appointment of the Cycling and Walking Commissioner, Chris Boardman has 
stimulated an increase in media interest in relation to cycling and walking. 
 

 The Beelines Network is Greater Manchester’s (GM) Cycling and Walking 
Infrastructure Proposal following the original publication of the ‘Made to Move’ 
strategy.  
 

 The ‘Streets for All’ delivery programme will develop and deliver the cycling and 
walking schemes giving consideration to the competing demands for highway 
space in each part of GM and seek to strike the right balance between promoting 
use of active modes but also managing the general traffic needs including freight 
traffic, and protecting bus service performance.  
 

 Capital programmes of activities are already underway across GM and through the 
confirmation of the Mayors £160 million pound cycling and walking fund TfGM are 
now working with local authorities and other organisations to deliver 
transformational change and bring forward future tranche of investment over 
next four years  

 
In discussion, the main areas covered were:  
 

 The Chair welcomed the report and sought to clarify where the £1.5 billion target 
was coming from. It was confirmed that the figure was an ambition set out by the 
Commissioner noting that in context £2 billion has recently been invested in 
expanding the Metrolink network. To deliver the first element of the cycling and 
walking infrastructure the GMCA has allocated £160 million from the 
Transforming Cities Fund, over the next 4 years. This has not yet been allocated to 
specific schemes but a development process is underway with the 10 local 
authorities to bring forward schemes.   
 

Page 49



6 
 

 Members expressed their support for the initiative but raised concerns in relation 
to the practicalities of implementing the strategy, in particular driver behaviour 
and the condition of the roads (potholes) noting that a cyclist was recently killed 
in Bury due to a pot hole.  
 

 The Oxford Road corridor was provided as an example of good practice making 
cyclists feel safer. In order to strike the right balance there must be a corridor 
approach, not thinking about any one mode in isolation, and parallel routing to 
organise the traffic in rational way. By doing so you can calm the traffic 
environment, promote active travel and public transport, and bring in improved 
traffic flow. 

 

 Members queried why the Strategy extends to year 2040. It was confirmed that 
the long term transport strategy was agreed by the GMCA in February 2017 to 
enable the opportunities provided by big transport milestones on the horizon in 
GM such as high speed rail in the 2030’s to be capitalised on in GM’s broader 
plans.  
 

 Discussions took place about the ‘anti motorist’ language referred to in the ‘Made 
to Move’ document emphasizing the need for a balanced modal view. It was 
confirmed that the ‘Streets for All’ delivery programme is focussed on striking the 
right balance and between all modes.  
 

 A Member explored how the ambition to ‘double and double the number of 
cyclists again’ set out in the fifteen steps of the ‘Made to Move’ document would 
be measured and whether it would be SMART. The ambition is to increase the 
number of cyclists from 2% to 8% across the conurbation by 2025.   
 

 Members discussed how reducing the significant number of very short car trips 
currently made in our local towns and neighborhoods will in turn reduce harmful 
emissions and traffic noise along with playing a key role in the improvement of 
health and air quality and help to reduce congestion.   
 

 A Member raised concerns regarding accessibility highlighting the barriers faced 
by disabled pedestrians. For instance, reduced access to doctor’s surgeries due to 
building work on road improvements. TfGM confirmed that there are considerate 
construction standards and expectations within the public contracts let, and 
encouraged Members to raise any issues with TfGM and their district highway 
departments. Improving pedestrian movement is a key element in the ‘Beelines’ 
approach, and considerably more pedestrian crossing facilitates will be 
developed.  

 

Page 50



7 
 

 Members expressed an interest in getting involved in any working groups which 
are developed. It was confirmed that the proposals are being developed by 
individual local authorities so they are driven by local issues and encouraged them 
to get involved at their local level. 
 

 How will cycling be made accessible and affordable to lower income households? 
Affordability is an issue which TfGM are keen to address and various initiatives 
underway which includes supporting a number of charities who run bike recycling 
schemes. Recycling schemes help reduce waste and provide cost effective bikes 
for lower income households. Bike loan schemes are another initiative which are 
supporting those who are returning to work.  

 

 A Member explored whether there are plans to develop the Beelines initiative 
across GM boundaries. It was confirmed that this is the next level of development 
noting that initially the plans focussed within local authority boundaries looking 
to address issues where communities’ are effectively severed by busy roads. It was 
confirmed that a consultation exercise is underway which will deal with both cross 
boundary issues within GM and the relationship to the outside.  

 
RESOLVED         That the contents of the report be noted.   
 
M76/HPE         INTRODUCTION OF A ZONAL FARE STRUCTURE OF THE METROLINK  
 

Members considered a report introduced by TfGM’s Head of Fares and Ticketing, Gareth 
Turner updating Members on the conclusion of the public engagement exercise.  
 
The following areas were highlighted:  
 

 Following feedback received from Members awareness was raised using an 
integrated approach across owned, earned and paid media channels. 

 The overall results of the exercise were positive with 99% of the respondents 
regular users of Metrolink   

 73% of respondents said that they thought the proposal was easy to understand 

 Two thirds of respondents felt the change was more convenient 

 It is evidence that people have not considered the proposal within the context of 
the fare increase in January 2019  

 It is important to note that 78.5% of the proposed zonal fares are lower than the 
assumed 2019 non-zonal fares.  

 
In discussion, Members raised the following points:  
 

 One Member clarified whether the volume of partial responses (Paragraph 8.1, 
1369 ‘partial’ responses) was within the expected range for a consultation of this 

Page 51



8 
 

sort.  It was confirmed that this was consistent with other engagement activities 
conducted recently. 

 The Chair welcomed the proposal to manage the transitional period by putting 
staff at tram stops to guide customers through the purchasing process.  
  

 A Member queried whether a ‘contract’ ticket offer was available which allows 
customers to travel across all zones. Under the proposal customers who purchase 
a 4 zone ticket can travel across the whole network.  

 

 Members discussed the importance or early engagement with the public and one 
Member suggested that the zones be clearly signed. TfGM advised that they 
intend to engage with customers in relation to the signage and welcomed 
suggestions from Members.  

 

 One Member queried whether the proposal had been approved and it was 
confirmed that the GMCA approved the proposal in principle in May 2018. 
Following completion of the consultation exercise a further report will be 
submitted to the GMCA on 27 July 2018 seeking final approval.  If approved, the 
scheme will be implemented in early 2019 to coincide with the introduction of 
the contactless payment system.  

 

 One Member raised concerns regarding the reliability of TVMs at tram stops. 
TfGM confirmed that the reliability of TVMs is an ongoing challenge due to a 
number of factors including vandalism. TfGM are working closely with the 
supplier in order to improve reliability and promoting the use of other methods 
such as the ‘Get me there app’ to reduce the impact.  

 

 The Chair thanked TfGM for the update noting that Members would welcome the 
opportunity to conduct pre decision scrutiny on future items.  

 
RESOLVED:      1. That the comments of the report be noted.  

2. That the Committee be kept updated on progress.  
3. That Members submit any signage suggestions to TfGM for consideration.  
4. That officers note the Committee’s desire to undertake pre-decision scrutiny wherever 
possible. 

 
M77/HPE       GREATER MANCHESTER SPATIAL FRAMEWORK (GMSF) 
 

Members considered a report which outlined the rationale for delaying the consultation 
on the next version of the GMSF plan until October to enable the implications of the Office 
for National Statistics (ONS) 2016 Sub National Population Projections (SNPP) published 
on 24 May 2018 can be carefully considered. The GMCA’s Head of Planning Strategy, Anne 
Morgan introduced the item highlighting that the scale of growth is a critical component 

Page 52



9 
 

of the plan – ensuring that the right number of new homes in Greater Manchester (GM) 
are planned for.  

 
In discussion, the main areas covered were: 
 

 Following feedback received on the last consultation a new engagement platform 
‘Citizen Space’ has been procured. The Chair welcomed the detail of the report noting 
that it was useful to review the live examples of the new system being used in other 
areas noting that the language used was very clear.  
 

 Discussions took place about the communications plan noting that a range of methods 
will be used to engage with the public including; blogs, social media and newsletters 
(circulated to those that have registered for updates via the website). Work is 
underway to develop targeted engagement plans for priority groups including young 
people and older people. 

 

 Members agreed that priority must be given to brownfield sites and saving greenbelt. 
It was acknowledged that identifying ways to bring forward brownfield land quicker 
is a challenge and discussions are underway with Government as part of the Housing 
Package. The Town Centre challenge is focussed on galvanising interest in town 
centres in order to reduce the green space which needs to be built on. Demonstrating 
that we having a viable 5 year land supply would strengthen the position in relation 
to saving greenfield and greenbelt.  

 

 One Member explored what work is being undertaken to reduce empty homes. It was 
acknowledged that there had been significant work to reduce empty homes and the 
proportion had reduced significantly but this varied by district. Increasing the council 
tax on empty homes had been a significant driver. The GMCA’s Head of Planning 
agreed to confirm the volume of empty homes in Bury with colleagues.  

 
APPROVED:          1.  That the contents of the report be noted.  
                                2. That the GMCA confirm the number of empty homes in Bury.  
 
M78/HPE        REGISTER OF KEY DECISIONS – JULY 2018 
 

The Register of Key Decisions was noted.  
 
RESOLVED:     That the Register of Key Decisions be noted.  
 
M79/HPE        WORK PROGRAMME 
 

A report was presented that set out the Committee’s work programme for Members to 
develop, review and agree.  
 

Page 53



10 
 

The Chair suggested the following areas be reviewed this municipal year: 
 

 Roughsleeping – month to be confirmed 

 Buses (October) 

 Waste Procurement – Technical solutions  (September) 
 

The Statutory Scrutiny Officer agreed to update the work programme accordingly. 
 
Members were asked to contact the Statutory Scrutiny Officer with any suggested items 
for inclusion in the work programme.  

 
RESOLVED:       1. That the Statutory Scrutiny Officer update the work programme as outlined above.  
                            2. That any further suggestions from Members be submitted to the Statutory Scrutiny 

Officer.  
 
M80/HPE         DATE AND TIME OF NEXT MEETING 
 

It was noted that the next meeting would take place on Thursday 16 August at 10.30 am 
at GMCA offices.  

Page 54



1

Item 4
MINUTES OF A MEETING OF THE GMCA CORPORATE ISSUES AND REFORM
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE TUESDAY 19 JUNE 2018 1.00PM, AT
TRAFFORD TOWN HALL

PRESENT

Councillor Nathan Evans Trafford Council (Chair)

Councillor Hamid Khurram Bolton Council

Councillor Tim Pickstone Bury Council

Councillor Annette Wright Manchester City Council

Councillor Raymond Dutton Rochdale Council (Substitute)

Councillor Peter Malcolm Rochdale Council

Councillor David Jolley Salford City Council

Councillor Yvonne Guariento Stockport Council

Councillor John Bell Tameside Council

Councillor Gillian Peet Tameside Council

ALSO IN ATTENDANCE

Dawn Docx Interim Chief Fire Officer, Greater Manchester Fire &
Rescue Service (GMFRS)

Leon Parkes Assistant Chief Fire Officer – Service Support, GMFRS

Gwynne Williams Deputy Monitoring Officer, GMCA

Richard Paver Treasurer, GMCA

Jane Forrest Assistant Director, Public Service Reform, GMCA

Maura Appleby Stockport Council

Susan Ford Statutory Scrutiny Officer, GMCA

Emma Stonier Governance and Scrutiny, GMCA

CI/01/18 APPOINTMENT OF CHAIR 2018/19

The Statutory Scrutiny Officer asked for nominations from Members for the role of Chair for
the 2018/19 Municipal Year. Councillor Peter Malcolm (Lab, Rochdale) proposed Councillor
Nathan Evans (Con, Trafford) and Councillor John Bell (Con, Tameside) seconded the
proposal. It was agreed that Councillor Nathan Evans (Con, Trafford) be appointed as Chair

Page 55



2

of the Corporate Issues and Reform Overview and Scrutiny Committee for the 2018/19
Municipal Year.

RESOLVED:

That Councillor Nathan Evans (Trafford) be appointed as Chair of the Committee for the
2018/19 Municipal Year.

CI/02/18 APPOINTMENT OF VICE CHAIR 2018/19

The Chair asked for nominations for the role of Vice-Chair. Councillor Nathan Evans (Con,
Trafford) proposed Councillor John Bell (Con, Tameside) and Councillor Gillian Peet (Lab,
Tameside) seconded the proposal. It was agreed that Councillor John Bell (Con, Tameside)
be appointed as Vice-Chair for the 2018/19 Municipal Year.

RESOLVED:

That Councillor John Bell (Tameside) be appointed as Vice-Chair of the Committee for the
2018/19 Municipal Year.

CI/03/18 MEMBERSHIP FOR THE 2018/19 MUNICIPAL YEAR

The Committee noted its Membership appointed by the GMCA on 25 May 2018 for the
2018/18 Municipal Year.

RESOLVED:

That Membership for the 2018/19 Municipal Year be noted.

CI/04/18 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Stella Smith (Bury Council), Linda
Holt (Stockport), Ann Duffield (Trafford Council), Colin McLaren (Oldham) and Joanne
Marshall (Wigan).

CI/05/18 MEMBER’S CODE OF CONDUCT AND ANNUAL DECLARATION OF
INTEREST FORM

Members noted the Code of Conduct for their GMCA role. Members were reminded to
complete the annual declaration of interest form and return it to the Governance and
Scrutiny Officer within 28 days of their appointment onto the Committee.

RESOLVED:

1. That Members noted the code of conduct.

2. That Members complete the annual declaration of interest form within 28 days of their
appointment onto the Committee.

CI/06/18 TERMS OF REFERENCE

Member’s received the Terms of Reference for the Corporate Issues and Reform
Overview and Scrutiny Committee.

RESOLVED:

Page 56



3

That the Terms of Reference be noted.

CI/07/18 CHAIR’S ANNOUNCEMENTS AND URGENT BUSINESS

There were no Chair’s Announcements or urgent business raised.

CI/08/18 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were no declarations of interest.

CI/09/18 MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD 18TH APRIL 2018

The minutes of the meeting held 18th April 2018 were submitted for consideration.

RESOLVED:

That the minutes of the meeting held on 18th April 2018 be approved as an accurate record.

CI/10/18       SCHOOL READINESS UPDATE

Jane Forrest, Assistant Director Public Service Reform (PSR) GMCA, presented a report
which provided an update on the School Readiness Work Programme in GM.

Members raised the following comments and questions:

 A Member asked how localities were to be made aware of the local picture for school
readiness. Engagement with localities had taken place regarding the GM
measurements; local measures would feed into the data collection system and
working with local leads was intended to ensure that the picture for localities is
understood and identifiable.

 How it was intended to engage with the pre-school nursery provision sector? Officers
informed Members that work was underway to strengthen the links between health
services (in particular health visitors) and early year’s settings. Training has been
rolled out on settings and lead staff appointed to assist with relationship building at a
local level. The parent programme was also highlighted as being a strong lead into
resource available.

 That schools had raised concerns about mental health issues in children at primary
age level and above and how the school readiness agenda aligned with this? The
importance of peri-natal attachment to mental health was highlighted and it was noted
that parenting programmes had positive outcomes for children with behavioural
problems and/or mental health issues. Improving transition planning, from nursery to
school, was a key component and setting standards for this was being considered.

 What would be the difference between GM school readiness measurements and
national measurements? Officers noted that the key difference would be around
timings. GM wants to identify potential problems at an earlier stage so that support
can be provided prior to a child reaching school. The supporting measure of success
for this was currently being developed.

 A Member raised the ongoing issue of children starting school who were not toilet
trained. GM needs to get better at identifying children in need that require more
intensive support. It was hoped that the data work underway would help to assist with
identifying children and families who required this support. Workforce development
and training with early year’s staff was also planned.

Page 57



4

 Concern about the rise in the number of children on the child protection register and
the ambitious 2020 target for this work was noted in relation to this context.

 The potential implications on schools needed to be assessed and consideration as
to how this was managed was required.

 Issues around the identification of mental health problems and access to support was
highlighted and it was questioned whether there would be more educational
psychologists required to support earlier interventions? At pre-school level mental
health issues were expected to the outlined in the Education/Health Care Plan. The
evidence base for mental health treatments for children under 5/6 was not robust and
a broader menu of early mental health interventions was important.

 Queries were raised about how the school readiness work would translate into
practice and whether there was the requisite funding and resources available for
implementation.  Officers noted the importance of sharing good practice in improving
measurements and the use of data in driving improvements. The data collected
should enable targeted investment decisions and the identification of those children
and families which need the most support. Workforce development and the ability to
identify early warning signs was also a key strand to maximise the impact and skills
of those working with families to improve outcomes.

 That it would be helpful if future reports included the previous baseline so progress
could be effectively assessed.

 Clarity was sought regarding when the 2 year School Readiness Action Plan had
commenced. Officers confirmed that the start date had been 1 April 2018. Members
requested that the report scheduled for November 2018 included progress made
against the action plan.

 Had there had been any pushback from localities regarding the recommended
actions/measurements? Officers noted that the GMCA had worked with localities to
understand joint priorities and identify gaps. The final plan and priorities had been
developed in partnership.

 A Member asked whether there was any specific developments relating to children
entering school who either no English or with English as a second language. It was
highlighted that one of the school readiness measurements in development looked
at increasing communication and language development. The University of
Manchester has also carried out research tracking these children and this has
indicated that in the majority of cases they catch up with their peers.

Members requested that the report recommendations were strengthened to state that ‘the
Corporate Issues and Reform Overview and Scrutiny Committee will assist with the
development of the School Readiness Programme’.

RESOLVED:

 That the Committed assisted with driving the delivery and development of the School
Readiness work programme.

 That the GMCA would work with the Committee’s task and finish group for School
Readiness to support work programme delivery.

Page 58



5

CI/11/18 GMFRS PERFORMANCE OUTTURN 2017/18

Dawn Docx, Interim Chief Fire Officer, gave a report which provided an overview of the
GMFRS’s achievements and performance against its purpose and aims over the preceding
year.

Key items highlighted were;

 There had been a small increase in deliberate fires compared with 2016/17, with the
largest proportion of these being related to loose refuse, wheelie bins or small
refuse/rubbish/recycle containers. Work was underway with partners to tackle this.

 That the average response time was within the target of 5 minutes 45 seconds at 5
minutes 38 seconds.

 97.36% of appliances were crewed and available during 2017/18, was an
improvement when compared to the 96.84% reported in 2016/17.

 Frontline uniformed establishment is 1239 and was currently showing a shortfall of
147 firefighters. GMFRS had a significant recruitment campaign underway and was
aiming to recruit 332 firefighters over 2 years.

 Accidental dwelling fires had increased by 2.77% (55) when compared to 2016/17.
This was the highest proportion of all the met brigades and research was being
undertaken as to the reasons for this.

 There had been 21 fatalities as a result of fire incidents; the highest it had been for 5
years. This included the 4 fatalities at the Walkden incident and fatalities related to
suicide.

 The number of false alarms increased by 3.6% (489) when compared to 2016/17 and
42% of false alarms originate from a non-domestic automatic fire alarm (FADA). Work
was required to reduce this figure.

 The volume of business safety activities was down. It was highlighted that this was
reflective of the number of specialist Fire Safety staff being below establishment and
following the Grenfell Tower major incident, resources being redistributed in support
of the High Rise Task Force and associated activities.

 Hostilities against firefighters had increased by 50% (31). This was noted as being
unacceptable and GMFRS was working with key partners to reduce these. This
increase had also been seen nationally.

 The recruitment campaign underway has had a significant focus on attracting
females and BAME groups into the service to ensure it is more representative of the
communities in GM.

Members raised the following comments and questions:

 What work was GMFRS undertaking to tackle sickness absences and provide
support to firefighters suffering from mental health issues? GMFRS had introduced
TRIM, an intervention developed by the Army to help deal with stresses. This was a
tailored service and early indications were showing it was proving successful. Work
has also been undertaken to reduce the stigma around mental health and to raise
awareness about recognising signs of mental health problems.

 Whether GMFRS intended to run a media campaign, relating to hostilities against
firefighters, to assist with tackling this issue. Campaigns, via social media, are all year

Page 59



6

round regarding hostilities, especially at key times of year such as bonfire night. All
attacks against firefighters were also logged. It was noted that more work was
required to reduce these numbers.

 Members welcomed the commitment to increasing diversity and asked what actions
had been taken by the Positive Action Team to reach out to under-represented
groups. Members were informed that GMFRS had targeted groups, visiting a diverse
range of organisations, for example gyms, mosques and community centres to
engage with and demonstrate the role of a firefighter. There has also been
opportunities to attend firefighter taster days.

 Was there a specific reason why the number of firefighters was not at the level
required? Members were informed that recruitment had been on hold and this
needed to be considered in the context of austerity and the requirement, like all public
services, to make savings and efficiencies.

 Whether smoking was still a significant cause of accidental fires? It was confirmed
that this remained an issue, as well as new risks from e-cigarettes, and that this
continued to from a part of the prevention agenda.

 The differences in reporting between fire services was highlighted and Members
asked whether there were any plans to align reporting to enable effective comparison
between services. Fire Services now fell under the remit of HMICFRS and would be
in their inspection regime this year. It was expected that this would be looked at as
part of their inspection agenda.

 Incidents of malicious false alarms were raised and clarity sought around what these
were. It was confirmed that these related to incidents where fire alarm systems have
been deliberately activated or have contacted North West Fire Control indicating an
occurrence of fire when this is not the case. GMFRS was committed to reducing these
numbers.

 A Member asked whether the crewed and available figure of 97.3% was for all
appliances or for those rostered to be available. This was managed on a day-to-day
basis and the main reasons impacting this were noted as being; reductions in
available staff, sickness absence, annual and emergency leave and overall
operational staffing numbers.

 Attention was drawn to the increase in safe and well checks and Members asked
whether there was evidence to support the benefit and impact of these. Members
were updated that work had been done to assess the benefits and the future role of
safe and well checks was being included in the review of GMFRS’s prevention
services.

 Whether GMFRS worked with partners across GM in relation to suicide prevention?
GMFRS worked with other partners as part of their ongoing prevention strategy. A
Member stressed that it was important they were involved with the GM Multi-Agency
Suicide Prevention Strategy.

 A Member highlighted the work GMFRS undertook with the Prince’s Trust which was
not included in the report.

 Members asked for clarity around the reasons for the gender pay gap figures. This
was the first year this had been published and GMFRS needed to better understand
these figures. The gap has reduced as the fire service figures have now been
included within the overall GMCA figures.

Page 60



7

 Member’s raised the possibility of the Committee visiting the new training centre at
Bury to assist new and current Members in carrying out their scrutiny function in
relation to fire. It was confirmed that a visit will be arranged.

RESOLVED:

 That the GMFRS performance for 2017/18 was noted.

 That a visit to the Fire Training Centre at Bury was arranged for all Members.

CI/12/18       PROGRAMME UPDATE – SCRUTINY PANEL BRIEF

Dawn Docx, Interim Chief Fire Officer, presented a report which provided an update on the
progress of the GMFRS Programme for Change. The Programme for Change is being
driven by the need to understand the future requirement for firefighter resources.
Consultation was due to take place with staff, members of the public and the Corporate
Issues and Reform Overview and Scrutiny Committee. The review will focus on 3 core
aspects of provision; prevention, protection and response provision. Governance
arrangements were outlined and it was noted that there was a Trade Union Forum, a Staff
Reference Group and an Independent Advisory Panel (IAP) which will all feed into the
Programme Board. Membership of the IAP has been drawn from the wider GMCA and
includes the Chief Constable, the Director of HR at Transport for Greater Manchester
(TfGM) and the HR Transition Lead at the GMCA. The Committee will be provided with
regular reports on progress and the final report was expected in 2019.

Members raised the following questions and comments;

 That this approach provided an opportunity to apply the lessons learnt, outlined in
the Kerslake Report, within GMFRS.

 That the IAP membership was drawn from local organisations. It was therefore asked
whether there was any opportunity to have another panel member from an external
organisation, for example another fire service. It was highlighted that the panel
included the Chief Constable of GMP, representing a uniform organisation, who had
had success in increasing workforce diversity. Additionally the IAP included other
sectors which GMFRS could learn from.

 Whether the review could look at re-introducing fire safety inspections in schools. It
was confirmed that this would be taken back for consideration in the review.

RESOLVED:

That the update on progress of the GMFRS Programme for Change was noted.

CI/13/18       a) GMCA CONSTITUTION REVIEW 2018/19

Members received a report on the GMCA Governance Review. The report had been
presented to the GMCA on 27 April 2018 and the Committee were asked to note the
decisions made by the Mayor and the GMCA.

The Fire Committee had been disbanded on 9th May and the Home Office had agreed to
amend the Fire Order to enable responsibility to be delegated from the Mayor to the Deputy

Page 61



8

Mayor (Policing and Crime). Permission was also being sought to rename the Police and
Crime Panel and Police, Crime and Fire Panel.

A final decision regarding the set-up of the Waste and Recycling Committee was expected
at the GMCA on 29 June 2018. Two nominations had been requested from each district
(except Wigan) for this committee. Views were also being sought from districts as to the
functions, size and membership of the Transport for Greater Manchester Committee
(TfGMC). It had been decided to reconstitute the existing TfGMC until the end of July.

Members commented that clarity was needed about the functions of Scrutiny and the Police,
Crime and Fire Panel in holding the fire service to account. Political representation on the
Police, Crime and Fire Panel was also highlighted and it was requested that consideration
was given to the panel including cross party political representation.

A Member asked about blue light collaboration and specifically whether the North West
Ambulance Service (NWAS) had been incorporated in the governance review. NWAS are
not under the remit of the GMCA and therefore do not fall within GMCA governance
procedures.  It was also noted that the Health Scrutiny Committee receives regular reports
on NWAS Performance. There is a statutory duty to look at collaboration and where possible
plans are shared and training coordinated between services.

b) KEY DECISIONS AND BUDGET SCRUTINY

Members considered a report which clarified the GMCA’s implementation of the key
decision process regarding financial matters, proposed that the financial threshold for key
decisions was amended in two instances and reviewed the current budget scrutiny
arrangements and sought approval to an amendment to the Committee’s call-in
arrangements The amendment proposed was that if the Committee had had an opportunity
to scrutinise the budget then this would not be subject to call-in procedures.

Members highlighted the proposal to exclude from the GMCA’s financial threshold of
£500,000 key decisions relating to the settlement of any actual or threatened legal
proceedings and requested that the Scrutiny Committee was provided with information
regarding these retrospectively. Officers confirmed that a mechanism to report back on
these would be incorporated into the amendments.

In relation to budget scrutiny Members stated that it was crucial the Committee had the
opportunity to scrutinise budget proposals in full prior to submission to the GMCA.

RESOLVED:

 That the Committee noted that the following categories of delegated decisions to
officers do not constitute key decisions as in each case they are about the
implementation of a previous decision agreed by the GMCA and /or the Mayor, which
scrutiny has had the opportunity to review:

i. Any decision to borrow money to meet the short term borrowing requirements
of the GMCA, to fund the approved capital programme, to refinance maturing
debt or to restructure the long term borrowing of the GMCA in line with the
provisions of the Treasury Management Strategy approved by the GMCA;

Page 62



9

ii. Any decision to invest funds in accordance with the Treasury Management
Strategy approved by the GMCA;

iii. The acceptance of tenders for contracts wholly or mainly involving capital
expenditure where the GMCA’s approval to the detailed capital scheme has
previously been issued.

 That it be agreed that the GMCA’s financial threshold of £500,000 for key decisions
is amended to exclude decisions in the following categories:

i. The settlement of any actual or threatened legal proceedings in the interests
of the GMCA (the Committee requested that there a retrospective reporting
mechanism be incorporated into procedures for these decisions);

ii. The payment of ‘passported’ grants from central government whose grant
conditions include express instructions on how and where monies are spent,
so that the GMCA or the Mayor are unable to vary any aspect of the payment
of that grant. Currently the Bus Service Operators Grants fall within this
category.

 That it be agreed that the Corporate Issues and Reform Overview & Scrutiny
Committee’s Call-In Arrangements were amended in relation to its Budget Scrutiny
functions as follows:

Budget Scrutiny

Provided that the views and recommendations (if any) of the Corporate Issues &
Reform Overview & Scrutiny Committee on the proposals for the Transport levy,
Waste levy and statutory contributions, non-mayoral GMCA Budget, Mayor’s draft
General Budget and Mayoral combined authority precept have been formally
reported to both the Mayor and the GMCA and considered by them, the decisions of
the GMCA to set the annual budgets, levies and precept shall not be susceptible to
call in.

CI/14/18      WORK PROGRAMME

The Committee received the draft work programme for 2018/19. The Statutory Scrutiny
Officer informed Members that the GMCA Head of Communications had requested that the
GMCA Communications and Engagement Strategy Report was deferred to September. This
was agreed by the Committee.

It was agreed that a 30 minute session would be held prior to the next meeting on 17 July
2018 to allow Members to focus on the work programme.

RESOLVED:

That the Statutory Scrutiny Officer update the work programme as noted above.

Page 63



10

CI/15/18      FUTURE MEETING DATES

The Committee agreed the following programme of meetings for the Municipal Year
2018/19;

 Tuesday 17 July 2018 at 6.00pm at Churchgate House, Manchester
 Tuesday 21 August 2018 at 6.00 at Churchgate House, Manchester
 Tuesday 18 September 2018 at 6.00pm at Churchgate House, Manchester
 Tuesday 23 October 2018 at 6.00pm at Churchgate House, Manchester
 Tuesday 20 November 2018 at 6.00pm at Churchgate House, Manchester
 Tuesday 11 December 2018 at 6.00pm at Churchgate House, Manchester
 Tuesday 22 January 2019 at 1.00pm at a venue to be confirmed
 Tuesday 12 February 2019 at 6.00pm at Churchgate House, Manchester
 Tuesday 19 March 2019 at 6.00pm at Churchgate House, Manchester
 Tuesday 16 April 2019 at 6.00pm at Churchgate House, Manchester
 Tuesday 21 May 2019 at 6.00pm at Churchgate House, Manchester
 Tuesday 18 June 2019 at 6.00pm at Churchgate House, Manchester
 Tuesday 16 July 2019 at 6.00pm at Churchgate House, Manchester

Page 64


	Agenda
	5 Minutes
	COSActionsList

	6 Work Programme
	7 3rd & 4th Quarter Corporate Complaints
	Append. 1 for 3rd & 4th Quarter Corporate Complaints

	10 Schools Final Outturns and Reportable Surplus 2017/18
	11 Greater Manchester Combined Authority Scrutiny Committee Meetings
	Item_4_Housing_Planning_and_Environment_OS_Committee_Mins_Draft_12.07.18
	Item_4_Corporate_Issues_Reform_Minutes_19.06.18_DRAFT


